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DEFINITIONS
B

In this annual report, unless the context ERFRA  BXESERTEIN  THRARZEEUNTEE :
otherwise requires, the following
expressions shall have the following

meanings:

“2018 AGM” the AGM to be held on June 22, 2018

[—E— \FERRBFAE] ARTER-E—NEXA - ARTHREBE AR

“AGM” annual general meeting of the Company

[IREBEFRE | RARNBRRBFRG

“Angame” Angame Inc., a company incorporated in BVI with limited liability on July 5,
2005, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

[ Angame | Angame Inc. ~RR-_ZTRAFLtARABERBELZHEFMAINER AR
ARNBHNEENBEQE

“Articles” or “Memorandum and the memorandum and articles of association as amended from time to time

Articles of Association”
[AEA =2 40AI ] s TARAI] sk AR TS TNRHERT AR E 2 R4 R 4B A
[HABERE R R4 ]

“Audit Committee” the audit committee of the Board

[BEZZEE ] EEEE THZEEY

“Board Committees” the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee

[EE£ZEE ] BEZELZEE  FMWEESRIEREEE

“Board of Directors” or “Board” our board of Directors

(5] AREBEFE

“BVI” British Virgin Islands

[RBRIHS ] EBBRLEFS

“CG Code” the “Corporate Governance Code” as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

[fhEEE<FAI] LR RS- E e [ EER<TA ]

“China” or “PRC” the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this annual report and

for geographical reference only, excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

(R REARAME - ERAFRIOOBRIETE - TEEEE  BFARSE

@ Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2017



DEFINITIONS (Continued)

B= (&)

“Company”, “our Company”,
“Digital Hollywood”, “Group”,

» o n o«

“our Group”, “we”, “our” or “us”

[ARRAR] - s - [ARSKE ] 53]

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ R AR

“Director(s)”

[E%F]

“Guangzhou SYND”

BB AER]

“Guangzhou You Lai”

EMNEHE

“HK$” or “Hong Kong dollars
[Tl

“Hollywood BVI”

[Hollywood BVI]

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited (#2% 5 &) & E AR 2 8))*, a company
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands with limited liability on
November 24, 2014 and except where the context indicated otherwise (1) our
subsidiaries and (2) with respect to the period before our Company became
the holding company of our present subsidiaries, the business operated by our
present subsidiaries or (as the case may be) their predecessors

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited (#2E B)SEBRAR]) * - —KHN2014%F
1MA24B1RIBERSHEEEAMUINBR AR - UMERXESEMIEN - (1)BM
BB AR RN ARRIR AR BB QR NZERATMOSHEMNS - BIREH
BARSR (RERME) L5 ARMEENER

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules and unless the
context requires otherwise, refers to Mr. LU Yuanfeng, Ms. LUO Simin, Mr.
HUANG Guozhan, Mr. HUANG Degiang, LYF Digital Holdings Limited, Angel
Age Limited, LXT Digital Holdings Limited and HDQ Digital Holdings Limited
AR LWRAMETORE  BWXESEME  BERELLE  REHLL  EH
JESTAE - E{E S © LYF Digital Holdings Limited + Angel Age Limited * LXT
Digital Holdings Limited &2HDQ Digital Holdings Limited

the director(s) of the Company or any one of them

AAREFHAREMN—RES

Guangzhou Suiyue Niandai Software Technology Company Limited (&M 5% A &
REEFEHEER 2 7]), a company established in the PRC with limited liability on
June 12, 2010, which is an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
BNZAFREHRIFEERAF  — KR 2ZE—ZEF AT _BEHRERINER
DA REAREINEEEENE QR

Guangzhou You Lai Information Technology Company Limited (B3 1{E 57}
K ABRATF]), a company established in the PRC with limited liability on May 13,
2015, which is an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
EMNBEREBRBEAERAR  —RR_T—AFAA+=—BEFBEXNIHNERA
Al RALQBIMEZESEANEB QR

Hong Kong dollars and cents, both are the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEEEEEET

Digital Hollywood International Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI with
limited liability on November 25, 2014, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
our Company

Digital Hollywood International Limited W —RXR-Z—MF&+—A=-+HALEHR
BRLBEEEMRINERAT] - RALQF] %ﬁﬁﬁ yNC]

BHRABHEEERR

T LFER @



DEFINITIONS (Continued)

B= (|)

“Hollywood HK”
[Hollywood HK |
“Hong Kong”

(&%)

“Hong Kong Share Registrar”
[FAERD B ERLER ]

“IFRS”
[ BEPR I Fr s 2Rl

‘IPO”

“Listing”
=

“Listing Date”
[EmAH
“Listing Rules”
[ rrRa)
“Model Code”
TR

“Nomination Committee”

[REZRE®

@ Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited

Game Hollywood Hong Kong Limited, a company established in Hong Kong
with limited liability on December 5, 2014, which is an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company

Game Hollywood Hong Kong Limited * —RA - —NF+ - R BHESERL
WERDT - RARAINEEZEZENE QR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FEE B RITTR R

Tricor Investor Services Limited
PEBHFERERAA

International Financial Reporting Standards
B R B 7 3R E )

the initial public offering of the Company, having become unconditional in all
aspects on December 15, 2017

EENERABEGHE  ARFAR_Z—tF T A THRETHNERAMES

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
AR AD TERE A AT 2R £ TR

December 15, 2017, on which the Shares were listed and from which dealings
therein were permitted to take place on the Stock Exchange

TEEFTZATEA - RN LT R B UL ERE R PETTEEN B S

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (as amended from time to time)

BEEBARZMERARES LR (EIRER)

the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FARAMEERTATE [ E BT AERETESF R HHIRETA

the nomination committee of the Board

ExeETREEZES

Annual Report 2017



DEFINITIONS (Continued)

B= (&)

“Now To Play Game”

[Now To Play Game

“Now To Play Game (Spain)”

[Now To Play Game (FEFIZT) |

“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”

[BRARBERBLIE S]]

“Prospectus”

[l =R ]

“Proficient City”

[ Proficient City |

“Remuneration Committee”

[FEZE 2]

“‘RMB”
[ARE ]

“Share(s)”
[t |

“Shareholder(s)”
[A%ER

“Stock Exchange”
[ B8 52 Py |

“U.S. dollars” or “US$”
E

Now To Play Game Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability on March 29, 2011, which is an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
our Company

Now To Play Game Limited * —HZR -E——F=HF -+ L BEBEBTMKINE
AR - BARENEZEEZEANBEAR

Now To Play Game Sucursal En Espana, a branch office established in Spain
on July 24, 2014 by Now To Play Game, which is an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company

Now To Play Game Sucursal En Espana * —ZFNow To Play Gamei —Z —
FLAZTMRAERNIRIZIND EE - BARFNEEZENBAR

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company on May 27,
2017
ARARZZB—+F R =+t BB RERNNBRET S

the prospectus of the Company dated December 5, 2017
RARBBMAZZT—t+F+-AOBENBRER

Proficient City Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability
on January 25, 2011, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
Proficient City Limited * — XA T ——F— A+ AHERBRELESFMAZ
WERAR @ AARFINEENBATR

the remuneration committee of the Board
EEgE THNEEE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

REDEEEBARE

ordinary share(s) of US$0.001 each in the share capital of the Company
ARRF A IR {E0.0015 T H) E B

holder(s) of Shares
A A

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
HEMERHAARRNE

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

EE A =S

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR @



DEFINITIONS (Continued)
B8 ()

“WR’
[EREE]

“7TRoad”

wop
[%]

For identification purposes only

virtual reality, a computer technology that uses certain equipment to generate
realistic images, sounds and other sensations that simulate a user’s physical
presence in a virtual or imaginary environment

ERES  FRETRERERERAEGERE SN ERNOBHRED - EmE
EEEVR  BELEMRE 2 BRI

Shenzhen 7Road Technology Co., Ltd. (Y5 KERHEZBR A A]), a company
established in the PRC on January 22, 2008, one of our game developer
partners

Y EERERBBERAR  —ZRZEEN\F—A-+ZBEFEKIHAF
REMeEERERERYZ —

per cent.
ANk

* RE AR

@ Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2017



CORPORATE PROFILE
~EEFR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. LU Yuanfeng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. HUANG Guozhan

Mr. HUANG Degiang

Non-executive Director

Mr. MENG Shugqi

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Darren Raymond SHAW
Mr. LI Yi Wen
Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. YU Ching Ming

Ms. KO Nga Kit

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. LU Yuanfeng

Ms. KO Nga Kit

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum (Chairman)
Mr. Darren Raymond SHAW
Mr. LI Yi Wen

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LI Yi Wen (Chairman)
Mr. Darren Raymond SHAW
Mr. LU Yuanfeng

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LU Yuanfeng (Chairman)
Mr. Darren Raymond SHAW
Mr. LI Yi Wen

E=g
HITES

MERESSE (ZEREENTE)

EEHEEE
EL L s
FHTES

mHEALLE

BYFBTES
BEALSE
TR
ERLLE
BEARAWE
SR
BRRL
RERE
R 56
BRRL
EREREY

ERLE L ()
ABAEAE SR
FRXESE

FMEES
FRXFL (ZF)

ABEALSEAE
BE IR I 52 4

REZES
BRI S ()

ARfEAE LA
FRXESE

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR 0



CORPORATE PROFILE (Continued)
AREH ()

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

No. 134, Xiaogang Middle Road
Haizhu District
Guangzhou, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

11/F, Tai Sang Bank Building
784 Nathan Road
Kowloon, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
BBVA Compass Bank, Spain
Bank of Guangzhou

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Messis Capital Limited

Room 1606, 16th Floor, Tower 2
Admiralty Centre

18 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISER

Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati
Suite 1509, 15/F, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place, Central

Hong Kong

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2017
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KFARE2212

EER =Y

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

RBRPEEEEFE R

T
EINTEIRER
BT 8 513458

BERTEERMH

BB NBE
FEHET845
RNAERITRENE

FEAREIT

B8 LBELRT

BBVA Compass Bank » FaET7f
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CORPORATE PROFILE (Continued)
NAEHR (F)

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

Stock Code: 2022

WEBSITE

www.gamehollywood.com

FERODBFERE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

ERARMBEERTE
BEBRHFERLRER AT

B

EERNBHE183%

AR 2212

B A1 5R

R 5 - 2022

#avh

www.gamehollywood.com

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR @



MILESTONES

BiE®

Year Events
F40 =%
2010 . Our founders became the beneficial shareholders of our first operating entity, Guangzhou SYND
—E-FF - HMWARAKRARMEREETEBEMNRAFROERRE
2011 . Proficient City was established to develop overseas operation
—T——%F «  BX3ZProficient City A3 EI/EHNETE
2012 . Launched multiplayer web game Wartune with an exclusive license for overseas publishing in
English-speaking markets
—E-—F . BMEMRAEEBEE Wartune - W BERET HHEZGINETTE
2013 . Proficient City was granted the “Facebook’s Excellent Game-Advertiser Award”
—E—=F . Proficient City58%¢ [ Facebook (& 7 i 5 /& & T+ A 4% |
. Wartune was granted the “Facebook Staff Favorites Recognition”
. Wartune #783¢ [ Facebook 8 T &= & 15,28 |
. Launched Stallion Race on Facebook
«  JFacebookZ % Stallion Race
. We were granted the “Best Overseas Publisher Award” by 7Road
- BMEREELRERE [ HEBIMNERETTEHAE]
2014 . Established Now To Play (Spain) as our liaison office in Europe
—E-mE «  KIZNow To Play (FIEZT) {E R MIEBUMEVEE AR I =5
2015 . Launched several successful casual shooting games, including a special edition featuring sports
figures and scenes licensed from Barcelona Football Club
—ZE-hfF . BMEERIMKESTRER - BIEMARERE ZHRERENRIEAY RISR ORI
2016 . Launched our cross-platform Wing SDK
—E—RF . {5 4 Wing SDK
. Entered into the VR market with our investment in a VR studio in China
c BEREPHE-REBRERREAF  EEERTRTS
2017 . Launched Lord of Star, a mobile game in cross-platform format on Gameroom
ZE—LF «  PAGameroom# 5T S8 B F IR Lord of Star

Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 2022) on December 15,
2017
ROV —ZE—tF+ A +EREBRZAER LS (ROKIR - 2022)

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2017



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2017 amounted to
approximately US$28.6 million, representing an increase of 0.7% from
approximately US$28.4 million recorded in 2016.

Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2017 amounted to
approximately US$15.9 million, representing an increase of 2.6% from
approximately US$15.5 million recorded in 2016.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2017 amounted to approximately US$1.7 million, representing a
decrease of 75.4% from approximately US$6.9 million in 2016.

Non-IFRS adjusted profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended December 31, 2017 amounted to approximately
US$6.5 million, representing a decrease of 14.5% as compared with
approximately US$7.6 million in 2016.

HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1t—HILEFEHRANA
286EEETT  R_T— NFREMNH284HEE
TCHENN0.7% °

HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1t—HILEFEHENNA
1598&FE L BT "FHEMNNI58EE
TLHENN2.6% ©

HE-_Z—+F+-_A=+t—HILFELXLTESR
ANEERFNEITAEEBETL BT —RF46.9
BEETLHAT75.4% °

HE_Z—+FT_A=+—RHILFERRRHESE

AESERIBR B 5 R ARG FI ) B6.58 B
XL BT ANFHNT6EBEETHA14.5% °

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR @



FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MR

For the Year Ended December 31,
BZE+-A=1+—HLEE

2014 2015 2016 2017

—Z—NF ZT—hF ZT—RF ZE—tHF

us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000

FET FET FET FEx

Revenue PN 22,776 28,008 28,446 28,621

Gross profit EF 19,991 17,969 15,535 15,926

Profit before income tax B TS T A= A 9,147 6,481 8,552 3,982

Income tax expense FisfiMAx 2,082 1,931 1,613 2,255

Profit for the year FERER 7,066 4,550 6,940 1,727

Profit attributable to: BT 4G R

Owners of the Company RAEHEB A 7,502 4,474 6,940 1,727

Non-Controlling interests FEFE AR M2 (437) 76 - -

Unaudited adjusted net profitNote TR AR T A 4K A B 4 Tl 7,350 6,196 7,565 6,516

As at December 31,
R+=—A=+-—H

2014 2015 2016 2017

—E-NF ZE-hF ZT-RF ZF—+tHF

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$’000

FET FET FET FEx

Total assets mEE 29,666 32,212 26,524 63,830

Total liabilities WEE 17,663 27,782 15,732 13,767
Equity attributable to the owners RARHEE AEG#ER

of the company 12,604 4,429 10,791 50,063

Mt - AR R MRBERM B REER 2508 6575
xR RAINERREEREHELHEREING
BB E  BHERRARBRRSYERMNEBRRL
EEFEENHAZTZE  UFERMANFBHE
B o BAPTRO RSB AZAL A TR 3230 P9 80 F s FI &+
High  MABEARND SERFMAS - LHE
MR LA A (IE) -

Note: To supplement our consolidated financial statements which are presented
in accordance with IFRS, we also use unaudited adjusted net profit as
an additional financial measure to evaluate our financial performance by
eliminating the impact of items that we do not consider indicative of the
performance of our business. Our unaudited net profit was derived from our
profit for the year excluding share-based compensation expenses, listing-
related expenses and costs for merger and acquisition, if any.

@ Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2017



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE|E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors and the management of Digital
Hollywood Interactive Limited, | am pleased to present to you the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the Group) for the year ended
31 December 2017.

OVERVIEW OF THE GROUP

We are a leading global online game publisher for China-based game
developers, with fast-growing in-house development capabilities for
mobile games. Our mission is to bring engaging, differentiated gameplay
experience to users across languages, cultures and borders. We offer
compelling value proposition to game developers by helping them
penetrate the international markets with one-stop solutions, including
game redesign, optimization, marketing, distribution, monetization,
payment support and other user-related services.

B RAIR -

AANERREXEDHEEAERAAEEERERE
B MAMEBTRERRFAREMBEAR (KNEE)
BIE—ZE—+F+-A=+—BILFEFR-

5

BAR—HK AT ENEEFAEFRERENZIRE
TRRBERETE  BAREFERNFHRERST
EeE N o BN EHS ARANMA—KR
BERBRTRERS  BXCRBERRNAPL - &
FIA—uh AR = (R E R R E - B1L - &
8 BT BE  IRXBEAGERPEROR
%) BEBBERETREEEERETS  AETREA
Wl MEETE -

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR @



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)
EFREHE (F)

We began our business as an international web game publisher and
grew quickly to become the No. 1 web game publisher with a market
share of 8.9% in terms of revenue generated from publishing web games
developed by China-based game developers in the international markets
in 2016. In recent years, we strategically expanded our business focuses
to develop and launch mobile games by enhancing in-house development
capabilities to capture the market opportunity from the fast-growing
smartphone users, and our mobile games achieved considerable success
in a number of regional markets.

RESULTS OF THE GROUP

. As of December 2017, we launched 27 mobile games (of which 14
are proprietary and 12 are currently in operation) and 25 web games
(of which 9 are currently in operation) over the world

. As of December 2017, calculating based on IP addresses we
recorded, we had cumulative registered users of approximately
55.2 million located in over 168 countries and regions, including
registered web game users of approximately 23.1 million and
registered mobile game users of approximately 32.1 million

. As of December 2017, our average active users per month (MAUs)
for online games were more than 1.8 million

. In 2017, we launched Lord of Star, a mobile game in cross-platform
format on Gameroom

. We developed and launched various casual shooting games for
iOS and Android platforms and achieved considerable success in
a number of regional markets, including Southeast Asia and South
America

. Dragon Awaken, a recent web game of us was immediately

displayed in the recommendations feed of Facebook and Gameroom
upon its launch in 2017

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2017

AEBENBERBEERZTHSORARER LA
RERKBEEEMOBEERETE (R2016
FooRRNERTISEITH S EEERERMAE
MEREEMEENKAME  AEBTH0HE
F28.9%) ° MMFR - MFVEBBILRA EHEEED
BRMMBARBGEHEMABE RN FHER - A
MEBEFHRAPRBIEREROMSHE  MA
HPIFREREES ELETISRE T T H#EAK

c BUIECTEEFTA BRMERERSHHE
27 F ez gk (K P 14EFm /a8 X7 &
N A28 58 B Al IEAEE &) 25548 B B
(ErhofEEiE B p EEEE)

c BEZTEFTA RERFEENIPHLE
e B2 TRA 495,520 & L 70 R B 1681E
BRM R RETEMAR - 8#42,3108
FWE BB AP & #3,2108 & F#E5
il

c BHIETT—HF+A - RMNBEBERNT
BEREBRRAPED808 AL

« ZEZ—tF - HZMHNGameroomEME T &
B F 5B Lord of Star

o FFIFT S R B 10S M Android ¥ & & A Y
ZRARGEEE - HEZEBRTES (B
REEMEEM) RIS T RERIKE

« BMEHNEEEEIEMRDragon Awakeni?
ZE - FBEMT A% - Bt Facebook &
GameroomB A HEBLE



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)
EFREHE (F)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP

Revenue of the Group slightly increased by 0.7% from US$28.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2016 to approximately US$28.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2017.

Our web-based games revenue slightly increased by 2.9% from
approximately US$10.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2016
to approximately US$10.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2017. Our mobile game revenue increased by 1.7% from approximately
US$17.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 to approximately
US$17.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2017.

PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP

Carrying on its strategising in the HTML5 game sector in 2017, in 2018,
the Company will launch a number of HTML5 game products including
Puzzle and Heroes, an English casual game, on international official
platforms such as Facebook Messenger. The Company will also build
and launch a globalised HTML5 game distribution platform on our own to
continue our undertakings in the emerging HTML5 game sector.

In the traditional web game sector, the Company will focus on the two
major offerings of MMORPGs and casual tournament games globally,
striving to make greater breakthroughs in terms of the number of users
and revenue from game operations.

In addition, on the basis of consolidating its global distribution, the
Company will step up its efforts in Southeast Asia, Latin America and
other regions with a rapid growth in population and economy to expand
local game markets.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the board of directors, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank the management of the Group and all our staff for their hard work
over the past year. | would also like to extend my sincere gratitude to
our shareholders, business partners and stakeholders for their continued
support.

LU Yuanfeng
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, March 28, 2018

SEMBRR

AEENRARBE-Z-R"ET-_A=+—H0F
EMHI284ABETLHM EI0T7T%EBE T —+
FHA=+T—BLFENK286EEET

AEENBARBBERARBE TR "F+ A=
TBEEENM02BBETHM ET2.9% =8
TEAFT AT -HULEFENHNI058EE
T FREBRARBE - -RETA=T—
REENMITARBRTEINIREBRE—"T—+
FHA=T—BLEFENMTTEEET

SERE KR

AE-ZZ - EtEEHTMWLEBENHRE £#-F
—)\F  RAEE B IE R BB PuzzIe
and Heroesft N #) % FKHTML5#2 B & &+ & B
Facebook MessengerEBIRE A FAIN B E
FTHEEY EEE2HEHTMLS BRI D BT & » BER
BT E A HTMLS 25 B 15 -

EEGHEEEBTHRERSAE  RABREREE
M EEMMORPG K IR il 5 B s B R K dn 88 50
ERPHENEEEL WA LBEE AR

Zo - EEERRAZRBETHER L - AFEE
REE - HTEMBREAD  LEERRENT
SIMARINE - E—FAREMERTS ©

&

ANBREEFRELRES  BHAREEEER
BREBETAE—FNFDRE  AATHEM
BRI - AR RS IR B S R BOA R
HEE -

fE R U
TEFREEHNTE
B -—T—-\F=A=1+)/\H

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR @



PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESENEREEREER

Below are the brief profiles of the current Directors and senior NTAAESERTESRaREEENBEEL -

management of the Group.

DIRECTORS 5=

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, of which three are EXeRRAEREFAN  BE-2TES
executive Directors, one is non-executive Director and three are —ZRTEEN BB IIENTES - TREY

independent non-executive Directors. The following table sets forth BREAESZENELR -
information regarding the Directors.

Name Age Position

e Fie B

Date of Appointment
as Director

EZERESNAY

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. LU Yuanfeng 38 Chairman, executive Director and
chief executive officer

BE R U2 5T A 38 X HITEFKERTE

Mr. HUANG Guozhan 38 Executive Director and chief operating
officer

mERESE 38 HITEENERELE

Mr. HUANG Degiang 44 Executive Director and
chief technology officer

BRI A 44  HOTEFREREME
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LU Yuanfeng, aged 38, is an executive Director, our chief executive
officer and the chairman of our Board. Mr. LU is mainly responsible for
the overall development, operation and management of the Company. Mr.
LU founded our Group in June 2010 and was appointed as an executive
Director on November 24, 2014. He also serves as a director of Proficient
City, Angame, Hollywood BVI, Hollywood HK and Guangzhou You Lai.

Mr. LU has over 15 years’ experience in the game industry.

Prior to founding our Group, Mr. LU founded Guangzhou Blue Power
Digital Technology Company Limited (“Guangzhou Blue Power”) which
is primarily engaged in software development in May 2001 and served as
its chief executive officer from 2004 to January 2011, mainly responsible
for development, publication and operation of various games. From June
2001 to February 2004, Mr. LU served in various positions up to the chief
editor of the game channel at 21.com operated by 21CN Corporation
Limited which is primarily engaged in the provision of information
technology services.

Mr. LU graduated from Guangdong University of Technology with a
bachelor degree in architectural engineering on June 30, 2001.

Mr. HUANG Guozhan, aged 38, is an executive Director and our chief
operating officer. Mr. HUANG is responsible for the operation and
marketing of the Company. Mr. HUANG joined our Group in June 2010
and was appointed as an executive Director on November 2, 2015.
He also serves as a director of Now To Play Game, Beijing You Tang,
Guangzhou SYND and Beijing You Lai.

Mr. HUANG has over 10 years’ experience in the game industry.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. HUANG served as a video game operation
and planning officer at Guangzhou Blue Power from January 2006 to
January 2011. From February 2003 to January 2006, he served as
a radio host at Guangzhou Sheng Se Chuan Bo Entertainment and
Production Co., Ltd. which is primarily engaged in installation services of
stage lighting and audio equipment and cultural communication, mainly
responsible for hosting and planning radio programs.

Mr. HUANG graduated from Guangdong University of Technology with
a bachelor degree in architectural engineering on June 30, 2002. Mr.
HUANG obtained a certificate as a host issued by the State Administration
of Radio, Film and Television on February 12, 2005.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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Mr. HUANG Degiang, aged 44, is an executive Director and our chief
technology officer. Mr. HUANG is responsible for developing information
technology and managing the research and development of the Company.
Mr. HUANG joined our Group in June 2010 and was appointed as an
executive Director and the chief technology officer on June 28, 2017.

Mr. HUANG has over 10 years’ experience in the game industry.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. HUANG served as the manager of the
technology department of Guangzhou Blue Power from October 2004 to
January 2011.

Mr. HUANG graduated from Guangdong Financial and Trade Cadre
Academy with a college degree in financial management in July 1997.
He was enrolled in Aptech Certified Computer Professional, an IT career
program taught by Aptech Beida Jade Bird, from December 2001 to June
2003. Mr. HUANG obtained a national certificate as an intermediate
programmer and a national certificate as a software engineer in
December 2002 and June 2003, respectively, both issued by the Ministry
of Labor and Social Security of the People’s Republic of China (now
known as the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the
People’s Republic of China). In August 2003, he was also certified as a
Sun Certified Programmer by Sun Microsystems, Inc..

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. MENG Shugqi, aged 39, is a non-executive Director of our Company.
Mr. MENG is responsible for providing business guidance in relation to
the game industry to our Group. He was appointed as a non-executive
Director on November 2, 2015. Mr. MENG has approximately 10 years’
experience in the information technology industry. Mr. MENG has
been the chairman of the board of director and the chief executive
officer of 7Road since January 2015, mainly responsible for its overall
management. He served as the chief operating officer of 7Road from
June 2009 to May 2014. From May 2004 to October 2006, he served as
a business manager in A8 Music Group, which is primarily engaged in
value-added telecommunication service.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Darren Raymond SHAW, aged 52, is an independent non-executive
Director of our Company. Mr. SHAW was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on November 24, 2017.

Mr. SHAW has been involved in the TMT business sector for over 13
years. Mr. SHAW served as the executive chairman of Pacific Media Plc
from 2004 to 2006, a UK-listed online and TV home shopping enterprise
with operations in Greater China. From 2011 to 2014, he was a director of
Shaw Brothers (Hong Kong) Limited (currently known as Clear Water Bay
Land Company Limited), which is primarily engaged in the production and
distribution of films. Mr. SHAW has been an adviser to Red Bee Media
(formally the broadcasting arm of the British Broadcasting Corporation).
He is currently a member of the Hong Kong advisory board of the British
Academy of Film and Television Arts (BAFTA).

Mr. SHAW graduated in economics from University College London of
University of London in 1987.

Mr. LI Yi Wen, aged 47, is an independent non-executive Director of our
Company. Mr. LI was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on November 24,2017.

Mr. LI has over 10 years’ experience in the information technology
industry.

Mr. LI serves as a director of Ningbo Lehui International Engineering
Equipment Co., Ltd. which is primarily engaged in development,
manufacturing of industrial equipment since March 2016. He also
serves as a director of Aleo BME, Inc. which is primarily engaged in
biotechnology research and development since January 2016. From
January 2011 to October 2013, he served as a director, chief financial
supervisor and secretary of the board at Guiyang Longmaster Information
& Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 300288) which is primarily engaged in wireless
games and Internet medical service. He served as the general manager
of Sina Net Technology (China) Co., Ltd. which is primarily engaged in
wireless games and deputy manager of Guangzhou Xunlong Technology
Co., Ltd. which is primarily engaged in wireless games from October 2002
to February 2004 and June 2001 to October 2002, respectively.
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Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum, aged 63, is an independent non-executive
Director of our Company. Ms. LING was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on November 24, 2017.

Ms. LING has over 30 years’ experience in the auditing industry, and
retired as a partner in PricewaterhouseCoopers in June 2013. Ms. LING
has served as a Council member of The Education University of Hong
Kong since April 2015, a board member of Estate Agents Authority since
November 2015, an Executive Committee member of Hong Kong Youth
Hostels Association since May 2001 and a Council member of The Hong
Kong Federation of Youth Groups since October 2014. Ms. LING has
also served as a member of Hospital Governing Committee of Hospital
Authority since April 2015 and a member of Appeal Board Panel (Town
Planning) since October 2016. She also served as a member of The
Employees Compensation Assistance Fund Board from July 2006 to June
2012.

Ms. LING is a certified public accountant and a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, Chartered Professional Accountants, Canada and
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. She is an Accredited
General Mediator of Hong Kong Mediation Accreditation Association
Limited. Ms. LING is also a member of Auditing and Assurance Standards
Working Committee of the Association of Hong Kong Accountants,
a member of Professional Development Committee of Hong Kong
Business Accountants Association and an executive committee member
of Regulatory Committee of The Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive
Director Association. Ms. LING was awarded as an Outstanding
Accountant Ambassador by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in 2003.

Ms. LING studied accountancy diploma course at The Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and graduated in 1977. She received a master degree in corporate
governance and directorship from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2014.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LU Yuanfeng, see “— Executive Directors” for details.
Mr. HUANG Guozhan, see “— Executive Directors” for details.

Mr. HUANG Degiang, see “— Executive Directors” for details.

Mr. LIU Jiahua, aged 37, joined our Group as our chief financial officer
on March 21, 2014. He is primarily responsible for the investment and the
overall management of the finance of our Group. He also serves as the
chief financial officer at Proficient City since March 2014.

Mr. LIU has over 10 years of experience in the field of financial
management.

Mr. LIU served as the finance controller at Moonbasa E-commerce Group
which is primarily engaged in the online sales of women apparels from
September 2010 to March 2014. From April 2009 to August 2010, he
served as a financial director at China Nepstar Chain Drugstore Ltd. which
is primarily engaged in pharmaceutical retail, a company previously listed
on the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: NPD). From November
2004 to February 2009, Mr. LIU served in PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong
Tian LLP.

Mr. LIU graduated from Sun Yat-sen University with a bachelor degree in
international finance on June 24, 2003.
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Mr. SHI Lijia, aged 34, joined our Group as a vice president on August
17, 2015. He is primarily responsible for the overall management of the
research and development of the Group.

Mr. SHI has over 7 years of experience in the game industry.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. SHI served as the game producer in
7Road which is one of our game developer partners from March 2010
to April 2015, mainly responsible for game development and general
administration.

Mr. SHI graduated from Lanzhou University with a bachelor degree in
Information and Computing Sciences in 2007.

Mr. CHEN Yangzhao, aged 40, was appointed as our vice president on
July 1, 2015. He is primarily responsible for the overall operation and
management of our Group.

Mr. CHEN has over 15 years’ experience in technology and software
engineering of game industry.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. CHEN served as the technology manager
of Guangzhou Tianya Internet Technology Co., Ltd. which is primarily
engaged in software development from January 2009 to March 2010. He
served from a platform development team member to a senior developer
at Beijing Bokee Net Information Technology Co., Ltd. which is primarily
engaged in technology service from October 2005 to November 2008. He
served as the senior software engineer at Guangzhou Ruixun Computer
Technology Co., Ltd. which is primarily engaged in development and
manufacture of computers’ hardware and software from September
2002. He briefly served as a software engineer at Asiainfo Technologies
(China) Inc., a Nasdag-listed company (stock code: ASIA) which is
primarily engaged in development of network system from April 2002. Mr.
CHEN started his career in July 2002 with Guangdong Xiantong Digital
Technology Co., Ltd. as a software engineer.

Mr. CHEN graduated from South China University of Technology with a
bachelor degree in computer science and technology on July 1, 2001.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In spite of the fierce competition in the game industry, all our key financial
and operating indicators for the year ended December 31, 2017 were
basically satisfactory as compared with the corresponding period in
2016. Revenue of the Group slightly increased by 0.7% from US$28.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2016 to approximately US$28.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2017, of which, our web-based
games revenue slightly increased by 2.9% from approximately US$10.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2016 to approximately US$10.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2017; our mobile game revenue
increased by 1.7% from approximately US$17.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2016 to approximately US$17.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2017; our non-game revenue declined by 50% from
approximately US$0.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 to
approximately US$0.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2017.
Our profit attributable to owners of the Company declined by 75.4% to
approximately US$1.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 from
approximately US$6.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2016. Our
non-IFRS adjusted profit attributable to owners of the Company declined
by 14.5% to approximately US$6.5 million for the year ended December
31, 2017 from approximately US$7.6 million for the year ended December
31, 2016. At the same time, our active users per month (MAUSs) increased
by 38.5% from approximately 1.3 million for the year ended December
31, 2016 to approximately 1.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2017; our paying users per month (MPUs) increased by 8.5% from 76,330
for the year ended December 31, 2016 to 82,797 for the year ended
December 31, 2017; our average revenue per month per paying user
(ARPPU) declined by 6.7% from US$30.0 for the year ended December
31, 2016 to US$28.0 for the year ended December 31, 2017.

In 2017, Digital Hollywood continued to engage in the research and
development and distribution of games and achieved outstanding results.

In 2017, the Company launched four web game products and four mobile
game products (including one HTML5 game) online in language versions
covering Chinese, English, Spanish, Portuguese and Turkish, establishing
a presence in the global market. The Company’s long-running games
were also recognised by global official platforms, of which, Omega Zodiac
and Dragon Awaken, licensed web game products distributed by Digital
Hollywood, were successively recommended by Facebook and Gameroom
in 2017, and Dragon Awaken was even strongly recommended by
Facebook officially on a global scale.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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In addition, the Company continued to operate its proprietary products
worldwide. In 2017, DDTank Brasil, MMOG DDTank, BOOMZ DDTank
and Gunny Mobi, proprietary products of the Company, were repeatedly
recommended by Google and Apple Store in countries including Brazil,
Singapore, Malaysia, Thailand and Vietnam, of which Gunny Mobi ranked
top amongst free games on Vietnam’s App Store in July 2017.

In addition to web games and mobile games, in 2017, the Company
distributed a HTML5 game product to Wulin Community in the South East
Asian region, which was the Company’s first appearance in the HTML5
game sector.

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND GROUP
STRATEGIES

Please refer to the section headed “Chairman’s Statement — Prospects
and strategies of the Group” in this annual report for the industry outlook
and Group strategies.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our operations and prospects and future financial results involve, and
could be materially and adversely affected by, certain risks. The following
highlights the principal risks exposed to the Group and is not meant to be
exhaustive:

. A small number of games have contributed a substantial majority of
our revenue.

. We work with game distribution platforms to distribute our games,
and our business may be materially and adversely affected if
they breach their contractual obligations, or if we fail to maintain
relationships with a sufficient number of platforms, or if the platforms
lose popularity among Internet users.

. Our growth prospects will suffer if we are unable to successfully
implement our game development strategies on mobile games.

. Our businesses rely on our data analysis capabilities, any impact on
which would materially and adversely affect our ability to formulate
appropriate business strategies.

. Our steady growth during the past years may not be indicative of our

future growth, and our limited operating history makes it difficult to
evaluate our growth prospects and future financial results.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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. If we fail to successfully execute our growth strategies, including
launching games of new genres, themes or operating formats and
investing in new technologies, our future results of operations and
growth prospects may be materially and adversely affected.

To mitigate the identified risks, the Company improves its management
capability and adaptability and further ensures the realisation of the
business objectives and sustainable growth. We aim at implementing the
following strategies to further capture players and enhance profitability of
our games:

. Our growth also depends on our ability to continuously launch new
games that attract and retain a significant number of users, in order
to grow our revenue and maintain our competitive position.

. We strengthen our relationships with major international game
publishing and distribution partners to expand the reach of our
games to new countries and regions.

. We further strengthen and expand our mobile games portfolio
by developing additional high-quality mobile games, and offer
more mobile specific value-adding features to enrich users’ game
experience on mobile devices.

. Our team members can utilise our various data analysis engines to
collect and store all user behavior data in a timely manner.

. We manage our expanding business, continue to offer new
games and enhance our existing games, maintain and expand our
collaboration with game distribution platforms, anticipate and adapt
to evolving user interests, industry trends and market conditions.

. We have expanded our product offerings to attract a demographically
diverse user community and will continue to identify new genres
with high monetization potential from game developers, meanwhile
we actively enhance our in-house research and development
capabilities.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overview

In 2017, profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately US$1.7 million, representing a decrease of approximately
US$5.2 million from 2016. Non-IFRS adjusted profit") attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to approximately US$6.5 million,
representing a decrease of approximately US$1.1 million as compared
with approximately US$7.6 million in 2016.

Revenue

In 2017, revenue of the Group amounted to approximately US$28.6
million, representing a slight increase of approximately US$0.2 million or
0.7% as compared with approximately US$28.4 million in 2016. The slight
increase was due to the increase in game revenue.

In 2017, the revenue from web-based games amounted to approximately
US$10.5 million, representing a slight increase of approximately US$0.3
million or 2.9% as compared with approximately US$10.2 million in 2016.
Mobile games revenue increased by 1.7% from approximately US$17.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2016 to approximately US$17.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2017. Other revenue amounted
to approximately US$0.4 million in 2017, representing a decrease of
approximately US$0.4 million or 50% as compared with approximately
US$0.8 million in 2016.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit Margin

In 2017, cost of revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
US$12.7 million, representing a decrease of approximately US$0.2 million
or 1.6% as compared with US$12.9 million in 2016. The resulting gross
profit margin increased to 56% in 2017 from 55% in 2016.

™ Non-IFRS adjusted profit attributable to owners of the Company was derived
from the profit for the year excluding listing expenses for the IPO.
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Other (losses)/gains, net

In 2017, other losses of the Group amounted to approximately US$0.5
million, representing a decrease of approximately US$1.5 million or 150%
as compared with other gain amounted to approximately US$1.0 million in
2016. This was primarily due to foreign exchange losses for transactions
conducted in currencies appreciated against USD.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

In 2017, selling and marketing expenses of the Group amounted to
approximately US$3.4 million, representing an increase of approximately
US$0.1 million or 3% from approximately US$3.3 million in 2016. The
increase in selling and marketing expenses for the year under review was
mainly due to the launch of new games and more advertising activities.

Administrative Expenses

In 2017, administrative expenses of the Group amounted to approximately
US$7.5 million, representing an increase of approximately US$4.1 million
or 120.6% compared with approximately US$3.4 million in 2016. The
increase in administrative expenses for the year under review was mainly

due to listing expenses of USD4.8 million incurred for the IPO.

Research and Development Expenses

In 2017, research and development expenses of the Group amounted to
approximately US$0.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately
US$0.7 million or 58.3% compared with approximately US$1.2 million
in 2016. The decrease in research and development expenses for the
year under review was mainly due to improved efficiency and our greater

control over the research process.
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Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

In 2017, profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately US$1.7 million, representing a decrease of approximately
US$5.2 million or 75.4% compared with approximately US$6.9 million in
2016. The decrease was primarily due to a significant increase in listing
expenses and foreign exchange losses.

Non-IFRS adjusted profit attributable to owners of
the Company

To supplement this annual results announcement which is presented in
accordance with the IFRS, we also use unaudited non-IFRS adjusted
profit®) attributable to owners of the Company as an additional financial
measure to evaluate our financial performance by eliminating the impact
of items that we do not consider indicative of the performance of our
business.

In 2017, non-IFRS adjusted profit attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately US$6.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately US$1.1 million or 14.5% as compared with approximately
US$7.6 million in 2016. This was primarily due to the foreign exchange
losses in relation to transactions conducted in currencies appreciated
against USD. Our non-IFRS adjusted profit attributable to owners of
the Company for 2017 and 2016 was derived from profit attributable to
owners of the Company for the respective years excluding the listing
expenses of approximately US$4.8 million in 2017 and approximately
US$0.7 million in 2016, respectively.

Income Tax Expense

In 2017, income tax expense of the Group amounted to approximately
US$2.3 million, representing an increase of approximately US$0.7 million
or 43.8% as compared with approximately US$1.6 million in 2016. The
increase in income tax expense was primarily due to a significant amount
of non-tax deductible listing expenses and foreign exchange losses
resulting in the increase of effective tax rate from 19% to 57%.

™ Non-IFRS adjusted profit attributable to owners of the Company was
derived from the profit for the year excluding the listing expense.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2017
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Liquidity and Source of Funding and Borrowing

As at December 31, 2017, the Group’s total bank balances and cash
increased by 443.2% from US$8.1 million as at December 31, 2016 to
US$44.0 million. The increase in total bank balances and cash during the
year under review was primarily resulted from the IPO proceed.

As at December 31, 2017, the current assets of the Group amounted
to approximately US$62.0 million, including approximately US$44.0
million in bank balances and cash, and other current assets of
approximately US$18.0 million. Current liabilities of the Group amounted
to approximately US$13.7 million, of which approximately US$8.0 million
were trade payables and deferred revenue, and other current liabilities of
approximately US$5.7 million. As at December 31, 2017, the current ratio
(the current assets to current liabilities ratio) of the Group was 4.5 as
compared with 1.6 as at December 31, 2016.

Gearing ratio is calculated on the basis of total borrowings (net of cash
and cash equivalents) over the Group’s total equity. The Group does
not have any bank borrowings and other debt financing obligations as
at December 31, 2017 and the resulting gearing ratio is nil (2016: nil).
The Group intends to finance the expansion, investments and business
operations with internal resources.

Material Investments

The Group did not have any new material investments during the year
ended December 31, 2017.

Material Acquisitions

The Group did not have any material acquisitions during the year ended
December 31, 2017.
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Material Disposals

The Group did not have any material disposals of subsidiaries or
associated companies during the year ended December 31, 2017.

Pledge of Assets

As at December 31, 2017, none of the Group’s assets was pledged (2016:
nil).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at December 31, 2017
(2016: nil).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group mainly operated
in the global market and majority of its transactions were settled in U.S.
dollars, being the functional currencies of the group entities to which the
transactions relate. We currently do not hedge transactions undertaken in
foreign currencies but manage our exposure through constant monitoring
to limit as much as possible the amount of our foreign currencies
exposures. Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions and recognized assets and liabilities are denominated in
a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency. We have certain
investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to
foreign currency translation risk. Currency exposure arising from the
net assets of our foreign operations is low. As at December 31, 2017,
the Group did not have significant foreign currency exposure from its
operations.
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Events Occurred since the end of the year ended
December 31, 2017

On February 15, 2018, the Board approved to grant share options from
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to eligible directors and employees
for their past contribution to the success of the Group, and to provide
incentives to them to further contribute to the Group, the details of which
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated February 20,
2018.

The options are conditionally vested upon satisfying specified service
vesting condition, which is mutually agreed by the employees and the
Company.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to repurchase or settle
the options in cash.

On February 15, 2018, 49,498,610 share options, which are to be
satisfied solely by the Shares held by Epic City Limited, were granted
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. No new Share will be allotted
to satisfied such share options.

The vesting period of the share options granted is three years and the
vesting schedule is 33.33% after twelve months from the grant date,
33.33% after twenty-four months from the grant date, and 33.34% after
thirty-six months from the grant date.

Use of Proceeds from the IPO

The net proceeds raised by the Company from the IPO are approximately
HK$276.7 million (after deduction of the underwriting commissions in
respect of the offering and other estimated expenses). As at the date
of this announcement, the net proceeds from the IPO had not yet been
utilised and all of the net proceeds has been deposited into short-term
demand deposits in a bank account maintained by the Group. In 2018,
the Company will start utilising the net proceeds from the IPO and for the
purpose consistent with those set out in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.

REBE-_Z-—+tH&+-A=+—HL
FERGERBREZSEHE

RZZ—NF-A+AB EFSEREELRR
FEERERETENAGEKES MEER L ERK
- A EMMBTHAEENKINAETR - I
HEMLPIE —PRAEEEL TR - BAFEER
ARalHAZT - \F_AZ+HHRE -

ZEBBETIN MR ERS RBIRTESE GRS
& WHRESRARTRKBEHE o

ANEE [ 30 S 0] S A IR & 8 E B AR 8)A TE St
Bff -

RZZ—NF-A+AHB - £549,498,610(7 8%
BREEX A AHAEERERESEIRE  MxEE
RS HE 5 4L #E LAE pic City Limited 9@ » T &
BTN LA R % S R AR A -

FELBERENGBHA=F  MEBRERNE
HEBRT A A% 5EE33.33% 0 PN E AR
Z+mEREEE33.33% 0 MREEBEHE=T
B A 1255 33.34% ©

BRARBRERBEREAR

AN EYEE) B IR AR B E TS RIBFE (EHKk
FRAZENRIEMAS ARG 82767
BEBL RAXSHE RMAERAREEN
FISFIEFEMAEA - B2HMSFRFEETF
AREEABARITELPHNEMEMNFR - R -F
—N\F - RARRBFHRSHAEAERDFEEEMER
R AN AR ER [ RRERAEHRIER
] —EPT LS E B Ak

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR @



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
BHEARE

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards
of corporate governance by focusing on principles of integrity,
accountability, transparency, independence, responsibility and fairness.
The Company has developed and implemented sound corporate
governance policies and measures, and the Board is responsible for
performing such corporate governance duties. The Board will continue to
review and monitor the corporate governance of the Company, as well as
various internal policies and procedures, including but not limited to those
applicable to employees and Directors, with reference to the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and other applicable legal and
regulatory requirements so as to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance of the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company has complied
with the applicable code provisions of the Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules other than code provision A.2.1, which stipulates that
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. LU Yuanfeng is our chairman and chief executive officer. With
extensive experience in the internet industry, Mr. LU Yuanfeng is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and general management
of the Group and is instrumental to the Company’s growth and business
expansion since its establishment on November 24, 2014. The Board
considers that vesting the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
in the same person is beneficial to the Group. The balance of power and
authority is ensured by the operation of the senior management and the
Board, which comprises experienced individuals. The Board currently
comprises three executive Directors, including Mr. LU Yuanfeng, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors and
therefore has a fairly strong independence element in its composition.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leadership and the internal control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board has
general powers for the management and is conducting the Company’s
business. The day-to-day operations and management are delegated by
the Board to the management of the Company, who will implement the
strategy and direction as determined by the Board.

The Board currently consists of seven Directors, namely Mr. LU Yuanfeng
(chairman and chief executive officer), Mr. HUANG Guozhan and Mr.
HUANG Degiang as executive Directors, Mr. MENG Shugi (Mr. MENG) as
non-executive Director, and Mr. Darren Raymond SHAW (Mr. SHAW), Mr.
LI'Yi Wen (Mr. LI) and Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum (Ms. LING) as independent
non-executive Directors. None of the Directors has a relationship
(including financial, family or other substantial or related relationship) with
each other. The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Company.

The biographies of the Directors the Company are set out on pages 16 to
20 of this annual report.

Each of the executive Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company and the Company has issued letters
of appointment to each of the independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
MENG was appointed as a non-executive Director on November 24, 2017.
Mr. SHAW, Mr. LI and Ms. LING were appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on November 24, 2017. All of the executive Directors,
non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors shall
hold offices until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment and that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.
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In accordance with the Articles of Association, all the directors are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Any new director
appointed by the Board (i) to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall hold
office only until the first general meeting of the Company following his
appointment and shall be subject to re-election at such meeting; and (ii)
as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the Company for an
initial term of three years or until the third annual general meeting of the
Company since the Listing Date (whichever is sooner) and is subject
to retirement by rotation at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years. These service contracts and letters of appointment
are subject to termination in accordance with their respective terms.
Mr. MENG, Mr. Shaw, Mr. LI and Ms. LING will be for a term of three
years start from the date on which dealings in shares of the Company
commence on the Stock Exchange, renewable by mutual consent. The
term of the service contracts and the letters of appointment may be
renewed in accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
the Listing Rules and other applicable laws.

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, contributions to
pension schemes, share-based compensation expenses, discretionary
bonuses, housing and other allowances and other benefits in kind)
payable to the Directors of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2017 was approximately USDO0.2 million.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company is determined with
reference to salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors and performance of the Group.
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management for
the year ended December 31, 2017 are set out in note 32 and note 28(C)
to the consolidated financial statements.

The company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal proceedings against the Directors of the Company.

The procedure agreed by the Board to enable Directors, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense as required pursuant to Code
A.1.6 of the Code.
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During the year ended December 31, 2017 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors, representing one-third of the Board, of whom
Ms. LING Kit-sum is the Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules, and considers them to be independent.

Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to ensure
that the Board procedures are followed. The joint company secretaries of
the Company are Mr. Yu Ching Ming and Ms. Ko Nga Kit. In compliance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Yu Ching Ming and Ms. Ko Nga
Kit have undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended December 31, 2017. Ms. Ko Nga Kit is the
vice president of SW Corporate Services Group Limited and appointed
as the joint company secretary. Before February 28, 2018, Ms. Hui Yin
Shan is one of our joint company secretaries. Subsequently, Ms. Ko
Nga Kit replaced Ms. Hui Yin Shan as the joint company secretary of the
Company with effect from February 28, 2018. Ms. Hui is in compliance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and has undertaken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year ended December
31, 2017.After the aforesaid service termination, Mr. Yu Ching Ming
and Ms. Ko Nga Kit continued to act as the joint company secretaries
of the Company. Ms. Ko Nga Kit has the necessary qualifications and
experience as required under Rule 3.28 and 8.17 of the Listing Rules.
The main contact person of Ms. Ko Nga Kit in the Company is Mr. Lu
Yuanfeng.

All Directors attended various trainings in the reporting period, including
trainings regarding the updating of the Listing Rules, the responsibilities
and continuous obligations of Directors and the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide. The Company had arranged suitable
trainings for all Directors in order to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills as part of their continuous professional development.

The Company is committed to continuously reviewing and improving its
internal systems, including those in relation to internal supervision and
control, and risk management.
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Board Meeting

The Company adopts a practice to convene Board meetings regularly
which is at least four meetings per year and roughly on a quarterly basis.
A notice of a regular Board meeting shall be delivered to all the Directors
at least 14 days in advance with the matters to be discussed specified
in agenda of the meeting. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally served. Agendas or relevant documents of
the Board or committee meetings shall be despatched to the Directors or
members of the committees at least 3 days prior to the convening of the
meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the relevant
documents and be adequately prepared for the meetings. When Directors
or committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they will be
advised of the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to make
their views known to the Chairman prior to the meeting. The minutes are
kept by the joint company secretaries of the Company and the copies are
circulated to all Directors for reference and record purpose.

The minutes of the Board meetings and committees thoroughly were
recorded all matters under consideration and decisions made including
any problems raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each board
meeting and committee meeting are sent to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held.
Directors have a right to review the minutes of the Board meetings and
the committee meetings.

According to code provision A.1.1 of the Code, board meetings should be
held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals with
active participation of the majority of the Directors, either in person or
through electronic means of communication.

As the Company’s Shares were only listed on the Stock Exchange
on December 15, 2017, no board meeting was held from that date to
December 31, 2017. A Board meeting was held on March 28, 2018 to
consider and approve the final results announcement and annual report
for the year ended December 31, 2017 of the Group and to convene the
AGM of the Company. The Company expects to convene at least four
regular board meetings in each financial year at approximately quarterly
intervals in accordance with code provision A.1.1 of the Code.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2017
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three principal Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Each of the Board committees operates under its terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Board committees are available on the website
of the Company and that of the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Company establishes an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Company has also updated the terms of reference of
the Audit Committee reflecting the changes to the Code in respect of the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems, and which
become effective on November 24, 2017. The Audit Committee consists
of three members, namely Mr. Darren Raymond Shaw, Mr. Li Yi Wen
and Ms. Imma Ling Kit-sum, our independent non-executive Directors.
Ms. Imma Ling Kit-sum has been appointed as the chairman of the Audit
Committee. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise, and provide an independent view of the effectiveness of, the
financial reporting process and the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, oversee the audit process and perform other duties
and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee did not hold any meetings during the year ended
December 31, 2017. A meeting of the Audit Committee was held on
January 30, 2018 to review the audit plan. A meeting of the Audit
Committee was held on March 28, 2018 to review the final results
announcement and annual report for the year ended December 31, 2017
of the Group, internal control policy and risk management systems, etc..
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Nomination Committee

The Company establishes a Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee consists of two independent
non-executive Directors, being Mr. Darren Raymond Shaw and Mr. Li
Yi Wen, and one executive Director, being Mr. Lu Yuanfeng, who is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing and assessing
the composition of the Board and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendations to the Board on
appointment and removal of Directors. In recommending candidates
for appointment to the Board, the Nomination Committee will consider
candidates on merit against objective criteria and with due regards to the
benefits of diversity on the Board in accordance with the board diversity
policy adopted by the Company. Diversity of the Board will be considered
from a number of perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, industry experience, technical and
professional skills and/or qualifications, knowledge, length of services and
time to be devoted as a Director. The Company will also take into account
factors relating to its own business model and specific needs from time
to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee did not hold any meetings during the year
ended December 31, 2017. A meeting of the Nomination Committee was
held on March 28, 2018 to review composition of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and recommend
the Board on the re-election of Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Company establishes a Remuneration Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee has three members,
comprising two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Darren
Raymond Shaw and Mr. Li Yi Wen, and one executive Director, namely
Mr. Lu Yuenfeng. Mr. Li Yi Wen is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
establish and review the policy and structure of the remuneration for the
Directors and senior management and make recommendations to the
Board on employee benefit arrangement.

The Remuneration Committee did not hold any meetings during the year
ended December 31, 2017. A meeting of the Remuneration Committee
was held on March 28, 2018 to review the remuneration policy and
structure and to make recommendations to the Board on determining the
annual remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management and other related matters.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2017
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuer” (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding dealings in
the securities of the Company by the Directors, the Group’s senior
management, and employees who, because of his/her office or
employment, is likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Group or the Company’s securities.

Upon specific enquiry, all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the Model Code during the year under review. In addition, the
Company is not aware of any non-compliance of the Model Code by the
senior management of the Group during the year under review.

FRAMEWORK FOR DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Company has in place a policy on handling and dissemination of
inside information (the “Policy”) which sets out the procedures and
internal controls for handling and dissemination of inside information in a
timely manner in such a way so as not to place any person in a privileged
dealing position and to allow time for the market to determine the price of
the listed securities of the Company with the latest available information.
This Policy also provides guidelines to staff of the Company to ensure
proper safeguards exist to prevent the Company from breaching the
statutory disclosure requirements. It also includes appropriate internal
control and reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside
information. Dissemination of inside information of the Company shall be
conducted by publishing the relevant information on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company, according to the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed as the external auditor of
the Company with effect from December 8, 2017.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the fees paid/payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers for audit, audit-related (primarily related to the
IPO) and non-audit services (primarily related to tax advisory services)
are approximately USD418,000, USD1,426,000 and USD225,000,
respectively.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors of the Company are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow during
the reporting period. A statement from the auditor about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out on pages 63 to
70 of this annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2017, the Directors of the Company have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimated that are prudent, fair and reasonable and
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The basis on which the Company generates or preserves value over the
longer term and the strategy for delivering its objectives are explained in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 23 to 31 of
this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal
control and risk management systems in order to safeguard the Group’s
assets and Shareholders’ interests and reviewing the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control and risk management systems on an annual
basis so as to ensure that internal control and risk management systems
in place are adequate. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Company also has an internal audit function
which primarily carries out the analysis and independent appraisal of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems, and reports their findings to the Board on, at
least, an annual basis. The Company implements and strictly enforces
procedures on inside information according to the relevant procedures
stated under the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2017
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The Group’s internal control system includes a well-established
organisational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and
authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are entrusted to
individual department which is accountable for its own conduct and
performance and is required to operate its own department’s business
within the scope of the delegated authority and to implement and strictly
adhere to the strategies and policies set by the Company from time to
time. Each department is also required to keep the Board informed of
material developments of the department’s business and implementation
of the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular basis so as to
identify, evaluate and manage significant risks in a timely manner.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group to ensure that a sound system is maintained and operated by the
management in compliance with the agreed procedures and standards.
The review covered all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions. In particular,
the Board considered the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions are adequate. The review was
conducted through discussions with the management of the Company,
its external and internal auditors and the assessment performed by the
Audit Committee. The Board believes that the existing risk management
and internal control systems are adequate and effective, in particular, for
financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance as well as for resolving
internal control defects (if any).

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Articles was conditionally adopted by the Board on November 24,
2017 and became effective on the Listing Date. A copy of the Articles
Since is available on the website of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Since the Listing Date up to the date of this annual report,
there was no significant change in constitutional documents of the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Pursuant to the
articles of association of the Company, general meetings shall also be
convened on the written requisition of any one or more members of the
Company deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company. Such meeting should be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition.
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To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward
at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Under Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more Shareholders holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may at all times have the right, by a written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to
require the convening of an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition. If, within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The Board is not aware of any provisions allowing the shareholders of the
Company to put forward proposals at general meetings of the Company
under the Articles and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at general meetings may
refer to the preceding paragraph to make a written requisition to require
the convening of an extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as
a Director of the Company are published on the Company’s website.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company as follows:

Address: No. 134, Xiaogang Middle Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou, PRC
Attention: Office of the Board

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2017
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRSE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on November 24,
2014 as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The Group is a leading global online game
publisher for China-based game developers, with fast-growing in-house
development capabilities for mobile games.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are shown
under note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the
Group’s revenue and operating profit for the year by principal activities is
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this annual report and note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group,
an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators, particulars of important events affecting the Group during
the year, and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, could be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance
Report” in this annual report. In addition, a discussion on relationships
with its key stakeholders is included in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”. The review and discussion form part of this

directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The consolidation results of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2017 are set out on pages 71 to 168 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved not to recommend payment of any final dividend
for the year ended December 31, 2017.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from June 19,
2018 to June 22, 2018, both days inclusive and during which period
no share transfer will be effected, for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 pm on June 15, 2018.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last four financial years is set out
on page 12 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property and equipment of the Group
during the year ended December 31, 2017 are set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 121 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is highly aware of the importance of environment protection
and has not noted any material incompliance with all relevant laws
and regulations in relation to its business including health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment. The Group
has implemented environmental protection measures and has also
encouraged staff to be environmental friendly at work by consuming the
electricity and paper according to actual needs, so as to reduce energy
consumption and minimize unnecessary waste. Further details of the
Group’s environmental policies and performance will be disclosed in the
environmental, social and governance report of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2017 to be published in due course.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2017
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year ended December 31, 2017 are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements on page 138 to 139 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year ended December 31, 2017 are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 140 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2017, the Company’s distributable reserves were
US$38.4 million.

BORROWINGS

As at December 31, 2017, the Company did not have any bank
borrowings.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
December 31, 2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the
laws of Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE IPO

The net proceeds from the IPO amounted to HK$276.7 million after
deducting share issuance costs and listing expenses. As at December 31,
2017, the proceeds raised by the Company from the IPO have not been
utilised. During the Period, such net proceeds were applied in accordance
with the proposed applications as set out in the section headed “Future
Plan and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. In 2018, the Company will
use the proceeds raised from the IPO in accordance with its development
strategies, market conditions and intended use of such proceeds.

DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of the following seven Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. LU Yuanfeng (Chairman)
Mr. HUANG Guozhan
Mr. HUANG Degiang

Non-executive Director
Mr. MENG Shugqi

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Darren Raymond SHAW
Mr. LI Yi Wen
Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group as at the date of this annual report are set out on pages 16 to 22
in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” to
this annual report.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2017
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company, under which they agreed to act as executive Directors for
an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date, which
may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either the executive Director or the Company.

Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from his/her respective appointment
date, which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either of the Director or the Company. Under the
respective appointment letters, each of the independent non-executive
Directors is entitled to a fixed Director’s fee while non-executive Directors
are not entitled to any remuneration.

The appointments of the Directors are subject to the provisions of
retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into any
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries (excluding
contracts expiring or determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation).

CONTRACT WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Other than disclosed in the section headed “Related Party Transactions”
in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements contained in this
annual report, no contract of significance was entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders
or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended December 31, 2017 or
subsisted at the end of the year and no contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during
the year ended December 31, 2017 or subsisted at the end of the year.
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DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than disclosed in the section headed “Related Party Transactions”
in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements contained in this
annual report, no transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to
the business of the Group which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director or any entity connected with such a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended December 31,
2017.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are decided by the Board with reference to the recommendation given
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five highest
paid individual in the Group are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 146 to 147 of this annual report.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any Director or any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. None of the Directors has waived any emoluments for the year
ended December 31, 2017.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or are
payable, for the year ended December 31, 2017, by our Group to or on
behalf of any of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective close associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that
competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group, other than being a director of the Company and/or
its subsidiaries.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2017
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have any
other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the
Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On November 24, 2017, each of the Controlling Shareholders entered
into the deed of non-competition (“Deed of Non-competition”) in
favor of the Company, pursuant to which the Controlling Shareholders
have irrevocably, jointly and severally given certain non-competition
undertakings to the Company. Details of the Deed of Non-competition
are set out in the section headed “Relationship with our Controlling
Shareholders — Deed of Non-competition” in the Prospectus.

The Controlling Shareholders confirmed that they have complied with
the Non-competition Deed for the year ended December 31, 2017. The
independent non-executive Directors have conducted such review for
the year ended December 31, 2017 and also reviewed the relevant
undertakings and are satisfied that the Deed of Non-competition has been
fully complied with.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and appointment letters, no
contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered into or in
existence as at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
December 31, 2017.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year ended December 31, 2017, other than the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme as set out in the section under “Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme” and Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not involved in any material legal proceeding during the
year ended December 31, 2017.

LOAN AND GUARANTEE

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group had not made
any loan or provided any guarantee for loan, directly or indirectly, to
the Directors, senior management of the Company, the Controlling
Shareholders or their respective connected persons.
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POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On May 27, 2017, the Company adopted the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme approved by the resolutions of our Shareholders. The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to attract, retain and motivate employees,
Directors and other participants, and to provide a means of compensating
them through the grant of options pursuant to the terms of the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme (“Options”) for their contribution to the growth and
profits of the Group, and to allow such employees, Directors and other
persons to participate in the growth and profitability of the Group.

Our Board has appointed The Core Trust Company Limited as the trustee
(“Trustee”) for the administration of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
and to hold the Shares which may be granted under the Options through
Epic City Limited (“‘Nominee”) a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Trustee.
The Trustee shall act in accordance and cooperate with our Board for
the purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. Our Company will
use Shares held by the Nominee and new Shares to be allotted by us to
satisfy the Options upon exercise.

The Shares which may be transferred from the Nominee upon exercise
of all Options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall not exceed 149,999,973 Shares (i.e. being the Shares held by the
Nominee representing 7.5% of the enlarged issued share capital of our
Company as of the Listing Date). Options lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not be counted for the
purpose of calculating this limit.

The new Shares which may be issued by our Company upon exercise of
all Options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and
other share option schemes of our Company (and to which the provisions
of the Listing Rules are applicable) shall not exceed 200,000,000 Shares,
(i.,e. 10% of the aggregate of the Shares in issue on the Listing Date
(“Scheme Mandate Limit”)). Options lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not be counted for the
purpose of calculating this Scheme Mandate Limit.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2017
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The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of
the options granted to or to be granted to each eligible person under the
Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue.

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme at any time during the period to be determined
by our Board at its absolute discretion and notified by our Board to each
grantee of the Options (the “Grantee”) as being the period during which
an Option may be exercised and in any event, such period shall not be
longer than 10 years from the date upon which any particular Option is
granted in accordance with the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. Options
may be vested over such period(s) as determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion subject to compliance with the requirements under
any applicable laws, regulations or rules.

The exercise price (“Exercise price”) shall be such price as determined
by our Board in its absolute discretion at the time of the grant of the
relevant Option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer of
the grant of the Option), but in the case that any Share would be allotted
and issued to a Grantee upon the exercise of an Option in accordance
with the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Exercise Price
shall not be less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a Business Day, (b) the average closing price of
the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange
for the five (5) Business Days immediately preceding the date of grant,
and (c) the nominal value of a Share. For the avoidance of doubt, in the
case that the Share would be transferred from the Trustee to a Grantee
upon the exercise of an Option in accordance with the terms of the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme, the Exercise Price shall be determined by the
Board, as it may think fit taking into account the Grantee’s contribution to
the development and growth of the Group.

A summary of the terms of the Post-IPO Share Incentive Option Scheme,
including the information as required to be disclosed in this annual
report pursuant to Rule 17.09 of the Listing Rules, has been set out in
the section headed “D. Share Incentive Scheme” in Appendix IV of the
Prospectus.

No Option was granted during the year ended December 31, 2017.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SECURITIES

As at December 31, 2017, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he/
she was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in
the register referred to therein; or (c) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as
follows:

Interest in Shares or Underlying Shares of our
Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest
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Mr. LU Yuanfeng®@® Interest in controlled corporation, interest of 989,226,387 (L) 49.46%
spouse, interest held jointly with
another person
fe IR U o = @) Rt EEER ks BE—AL
HEARFAHER
Mr. HUANG Guozhan® Interest in controlled corporation, interest 989,226,387 (L) 49.46%
held jointly with another person
mEREEE® REEDEEER BB - AT HEREHER
Mr. HUANG Degiang Interest in controlled corporation, interest 989,226,387 (L) 49.46%

held jointly with another person

HiEmEE EEGEEER  HE - AT HRIBEOER
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Note:

(1

(2

®)

4)

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

Under the SFO, Mr. LU Yuanfeng is deemed to be interested in all Shares
held by LYF Digital Holdings Limited, a company which is wholly-owned
by him. Mr. LU is also deemed to be interested in all Shares held by (1)
Ms. LUO Simin as Ms. LUO is the spouse of Mr. LU; and (2) Mr. HUANG
Guozhan and Mr. HUANG Degiang as they are parties acting in concert.

Under the SFO, Mr. HUANG Guozhan is deemed to be interested in all
Shares held by (1) LXT Digital Holdings Limited, a company which is wholly-
owned by him; and (2) Mr. LU Yuanfeng, Ms. LUO Simin and Mr. HUANG
Degiang as they are parties acting in concert.

Under the SFO, Mr. HUANG Degiang is deemed to be interested in all
Shares held by (1) HDQ Digital Holdings Limited, a company which is
wholly-owned by him; and (2) Mr. LU Yuanfeng, Ms. LUO Simin and Mr.
HUANG Guozhan as they are parties acting in concert.

Interest in associated corporation

fia -

(1M

(2)

3)

4)

FEILIEZATREHOTAR -

RIEEFH R EEG - BERE L £ WRARLYF
Digital Holdings Limited (& &M B A R]) FiF
SRR EEER - FEEETERAR()EEH
Z+ (ARRZTAERENER)  RQ)EBVEL
EREEREE (BREZFA—BITBAL) FiEE
W2 ERMHPEEE -

RIEFEF REE RG] - BEHEEWER/R()LXT
Digital Holdings Limited ({2 &AM AF]) i &
QERELE  HRBFRETREEREE (BRE
ERBITHAL) 2RO T ERER -

RIEFEF LB GRS - FEBEERKRR/N()HDQ
Digital Holdings Limited (12 &#ANAF]) i &
QPFERIERE - BB L REERLE (BRE
ERBITBAL) IR ERO T EAEL -

RIEEEE N ERS

Approximate
percentage of

Capacity/nature Number of  shareholding

Name of Director Associated Corporation of interest Shares interest
EENE HEEE 54 EmitE ROBE HMOREBDLL
Mr. LU Yuanfeng LYF Digital Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 100 100%
BRI S0 A LYF Digital Holdings Limited EnEEA
Mr. HUANG Guozhan LXT Digital Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 100 100%
HEE A LXT Digital Holdings Limited BEnEAA
Mr. HUANG Degiang HDQ Digital Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 100 100%
=EREA HDQ Digital Holdings Limited BE=mEBA

Note: B3

(1) Under the SFO, a holding company is regarded as an “associated (1) WREIZHFRABKL  ERAFER S HEEE

corporation.” Immediately following the Completion of the Global Offering
(without taking into account the Shares to be issued upon the exercise of the
Over-allotment Option, the Shares to be issued upon the exercise of options
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme), LYF Digital Holdings
Limited, LXT Digital Holdings Limited and HDQ Digital Holdings Limited will
hold 27.64%, 4.91% an 4.91% of our issued share capital and thus is our
associated corporation.

B ERE2RBEETRE (TR EBERLRE
BITHEMETRITNRG  AERRBEERAMAEE
REBEE S 3R B B AR EIT M A T EITHAR
) * LYF Digital Holdings Limited * LXT Digital
Holdings Limited 2HDQ Digital Holdings Limited
A RMOE TR AMN27.64%  4.91%%
4.91% » Ft R EHFEROEE -

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR @
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Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme” and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as at
December 31, 2017, none of the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company has any interests and/or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

So far as our Directors are aware, as of the Latest Practicable Date
and immediately following completion of the Global Offering (assuming
the Over-allotment Option (as defined in the Prospectus) or any options
which may be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are not
exercised), the following persons will have interests or short positions in
Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, will be, directly
or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of our Company and are therefore regarded as substantial
shareholders of our Company under the Listing Rules:

BEXRTERAMEERERES ] —fRE
ERBEEARAA RZE—+FE+A=+—
B BEARRESRITHRARNARE) K H A
EE (E&REZ MERIEXVED) 8kt - 48
Bk R ESTHEEREES LB GRIIEXVEE
TRESHEAMEARE MBI PT (BRERERES
RERE RIS REFERE A EA R IOX
B RIBEFE S ME GDIF 3521687250 A DI P
BROELMR RRBRETAANGARR LR
e s &/ SORA -

FERRRESFHED

REZERA BEREAUTAALRZEEZREEST
Bk (RFEBRELRE (ERRERER) REE
RAFEERBRET SRR HNERNBRED
T - THALTHREODIEEROPEER
BERZMHEEMNEXVEFE2R3D B KX AT
BEOERIOAR AN ERIEREFMEEN
AEEABELTERRBNBRRRNE LRENEM
BRI A E10%3 A Lyt - FULRE EmR
AR RAARBETEMR

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s

Number of ordinary issued share

Name of Director Nature of Interest shares interested(" capital
BEEREREN EARATE BT
EENA EmME ZERHEE® RENMOB DL
Mr. LU Yuanfeng® Interest in a controlled corporation; 989,226,387 (L) 49.46%
interests of spouse; interest held
jointly with another person
Fee IR g o A @ REGAERER  iEER BB AL
HEFARER
LYF Digital Holdings Limited Beneficial owner; interests held 989,226,387 (L) 49.46%

jointly with another person
LYF Digital Holdings Limited

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2017
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Number of ordinary

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

Name of Director Nature of Interest shares interested(" capital
HEERREN hAR DB BT

EENE BEME EERHEEO REWBOE S

Ms. LUO Simin® Interest in a controlled corporation; 989,226,387 (L) 49.46%
interests of spouse; interest held
jointly with another person

SR BHzZL® Rt EER BE—AL
HRAFAHER

Angel Age Limited Beneficial owner; interests held 989,226,387 (L) 49.46%
jointly with another person

Angel Age Limited BEnEAA  BE— ALEEFEMNER

Mr. HUANG Guozhan® Interest in a controlled corporation; 989,226,387 (L) 49.46%
interest held jointly with another person

|mEDRESE AW EEGDEEER  BE - AT HA
FEER

LXT Digital Holdings Limited Beneficial owner; interests held 989,226,387 (L) 49.46%
jointly with another person

LXT Digital Holdings Limited Emiih  BE—-ALHRARAENER

Mr. HUANG Degiang® Interest in a controlled corporation; 989,226,387 (L) 49.46%
interest held jointly with another person

mBEEES R EEER  BE— AT HA
FAENER

HDQ Digital Holdings Limited Beneficial owner; interests held 989,226,387 (L) 49.46%
jointly with another person

HDQ Digital Holdings Limited EmiA A BE - ATHRABENER

7Road® Interest in a controlled corporation 310,496,901 (L) 15.52%

BLRE® EEGDEE R

-

KEEEEER AR

R

T FER @
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Number of ordinary

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

Name of Director Nature of Interest shares interested(" capital
HEEREREN HARATE BT
EEfE EEME ZERHEE® RENMOBE DL
7 Road International Group Limited  Beneficial owner 310,496,901 (L) 15.52%
(“7 Road International”)
7 Road International Group Limited EzZ#HH A
(['7 Road International ])
The Core Trust Company Limited™  Trustee 149,999,973 (L) 7.50%
The Core Trust Company Limited” S5 A
Epic City Limited Nominee for another person 149,999,973 (L) 7.50%

Epic City Limited A ATHREA

Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2) Under the SFO, Mr. LU Yuanfeng is deemed to be interested in all Shares
held by LYF Digital Holdings Limited, a company which is wholly-owned
by him. Mr. LU is also deemed to be interested in all Shares held by (i)
Ms. LUO Simin as Ms. LUO is the spouse of Mr. LU; and (ii) Mr. HUANG
Guozhan and Mr. HUANG Degiang, as they are parties acting in concert.

(3) Under the SFO, Ms. LUO Simin is deemed to be interested in all Shares held
by Angel Age Limited, a company which is wholly-owned by her. Ms. LUO
is also deemed to be interested in all Shares held by (i) Mr. LU Yuanfeng
as Mr. LU is the spouse of Ms. LUO; and (ii) Mr. HUANG Guozhan and Mr.
HUANG Degiang, as they are parties acting in concert.

(4) Under the SFO, Mr. HUANG Guozhan is deemed to be interested in all

Shares held by (i) LXT Digital Holdings Limited, a company which is wholly-
owned by him; and (ii) Mr. LU Yuanfeng, Ms. LUO Simin and Mr. HUANG

Degiang as they are parties acting in concert.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2017

M

(1

(2)

3)

4)

FE LI RTRZALTREOPEFE -

R EF R BRG] BERE LA WRARLYF
Digital Holdings Limited (# 2 &M@ BHAR]) 48
B2 ARG PR R o BERETER AN
Gt (ARRZ T RELENEME) R(i)&ZEESE
EREERSE (AREEA—BITBHAL) HAH
2EBIR R R o

BIEFESRBAEERA - 5BEHZ TR BRAngel
Age Limited ((F2 B BN AE]) BENE G
PR ERD o BB TR ARG)ERELE (AR
fie 5 A A BE 2 T BCAB) M (i) = EBERT A R EER
S (BRESA—BITEHAL) BENH2 RN F
HEHE -

REEF RIS GO - FEURE AR AR G)LXT
Digital Holdings Limited ({2 & #A8AQE]) K (i)
BERIELE BB TIREEALE (AREER
—BITBAL) BENEBRO P EEER -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EERHRE (8

(5) Under the SFO, Mr. HUANG Degiang is deemed to be interested in all
Shares held by (i) HDQ Digital Holdings Limited, a company which is wholly-
owned by him; and (ii) Mr. LU Yuanfeng, Ms. LUO Simin and Mr. HUANG
Guozhan as they are parties acting in concert.

(6) Under the SFO, 7Road is deemed to be interested in all Shares held by 7
Road International, a company which is wholly-owned by 7Road.

(7) The Core Trust Company Limited, being the trustee of Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme, directly holds the entire issued share capital of Epic City
Limited, which holds Shares underlying the options to be granted under the

scheme for the benefit of eligible participants pursuant to such scheme.

Save as disclosed herein, our Directors are not aware of any person who
will, immediately following completion of the Global Offering (assuming
the Over-allotment Option or any options which may be granted under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are not exercised), have interests
or short positions in Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or, will be, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of our Company. Our Directors are
not aware of any arrangement which may at a subsequent date result in a
change of control of our Company.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, at no time during the
year under review was the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debt
securities including debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

(5) IREFHFREEGKRD - FEEEEWRAN()HDQ
Digital Holdings Limited ({2 & #A /2 A]) (i)
BERESE REBGLZTREREEE (ARESA
—BIBAL) BAENEBROHPESEE -

6) WREFHEBEKR  FLKBEWIEAKT Road
International (E - KE2EHBRAR) FENE
R R A o

(7) The Core Trust Company Limited (8] & X 2 7
BERBREGENXITEA) EEFBEpic City
Limited®) 2 02 2477 + MEpic City Limited8
BREZTEREERZEENNRHAREZE
R B B AR S B AR 1

BAMERELEIN  EELTHABEERHREET
Bfg (RERBRAR RN BRIEE R AR EERBR
REFH BT AL A (E ] BB AR A DT () - A
THREOEBREROTHEEREBEES RAE K
PIEEXVER 28370 BB #O {5 SR T 4% 58 A0 2 SR
B AN ERIMEREEN AN EEMBERT
EARRAHNBRRERAREG EREOEMERNRAEE
10%3k A LS - BRI AMBRNEIR BHAT A
YRR BHE IR SO EA L5 -

BEROIEEELZH

BRERLHESERBRESIN  AQTF - AR
REV MK E R B ER D BEFEEERRRE L
AR BEEEREBEEARQ RS EM
ENEREOREBES (BEEES) MES -

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR @
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

In the year under review, the Group’s largest customers accounted for
23% of the Group’s total revenue. The Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 61.6% of the Group’s total revenue.

In the year under review, the Group’s largest suppliers accounted for
36.2% of the Group’s total purchase. The Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 63.0% of the Group’s total purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
has any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or the
Group’s five largest customers.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS
OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the
Shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at December 31, 2017, the Group had 136 employees (2016: 169),
29 of which were responsible for game development and maintenance,
70 for game operation and offline events organization, 37 for general
administration and corporate management. The total remuneration
expenses, excluding share-based compensation expense, for the year
ended December 31, 2017 were US$2.8 million, representing a decrease
of 26.3% as compared to the year ended December 31, 2016. The Group
enters into employment contracts with its employees to cover matters
such as position, term of employment, wage, employee benefits and
liabilities for breaches and grounds for termination.

Remuneration of the Group’s employees includes basic salaries,
allowances, bonus, share options and other employee benefits, and
is determined with reference to their experience, qualifications and
general market conditions. The emolument policy for the employees of
the Group is set up by the Board on the basis of their merit, qualification
and competence. We provide regular training to our employees in order
to improve their skills and knowledge. The training courses range from
further educational studies to skill training to professional development
courses for management personnel.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2017

FTEREBRER

REBFER  AEENFAKEPEAREEBKA
23% > AEBHNAAREFPHAEE BB A61.6% °

REBFER  AEENEAHERGEARERE
#FE36.2% - AEBEMH A AHEREAEERER
#163.0% °

MEEFSIHEAETBREA (EER LWRAD
FERNBEFHANEEADFABBHTEAZR
5%M RN ALY T A BRI AARTLHES
EIEERE -

LHESFAEANGHBEEENHE

ARBATHBEARARBERAFAARAERMA
ESNEARBEERHD -

ADER

RZZE—+tF+—A=+—H AEEEE136%
BB (ZT—RF 1 1694%) - EP20X B EFEER
BREE TOZBEEMEERBR T IBGRE
M37THEEETHRLEEE -HE-Z—tF+
AT HALEFEMNATFHIHE SN A28 8E
T BHEZZ—ARNF+-AZ+—BLEFEERD
26.3% - AEBEEEEREREAL - RIBABA -
RAFH - TE  EERFH  BHNETRKILIER
LEF o

AEERERENFHEEEARGS 28 LA -8B
BEREMEESRN  U2ERFZER EER
—RIISIRRETE - AEERENFHERMES
eREERENERE - EEXENTHE - HAAE
BiRMEHEI - AE MR A - 553
RIBRERBEHSECERAIR  UREBAR
REFEBRRIE -
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group’s employees in Hong Kong have all participated in the
Mandatory Provident Fund in Hong Kong. The employees of the PRC
subsidiaries are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The employees of the PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to this retirement benefits scheme is
to make the required contributions under the scheme.

Details of the pension obligations of the Company are set out in note 22
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

RIRERGHE
AEEEBEEHZ2ETEERIMEATES o &
W8 A RREE S R BB EFNBERKE RN
BRFHBIKE - hEIFE R RN R 8 AR EFH I
ET AN RRKEME SR - AR A REN
FRFB A - B RREAME Bl E - AR EAyH
—EETREZETBIEH R E PR -

ARFRREEEFBRRAF RS O B mR M
22

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BERXS
Continuing connected transactions for the period H-Z—tH+-A+HZHE=-F—
from December 15, 2017 to December 31, 2017 tFE+Z A=t -HHBZEERE
5
Annual cap
Amount (Note a)
FELR
©8 (MizEa)
usD USD
ESp E0
Royalty fees charged by 7Road International WA BITHREER
Group Limited (“7Road”) arising from content 7Road International Group Limited
distribution agreements (Note b) (TEEXKE]) WEZREE (F5Eb) 139,708 400,000
License fees and royalty fees charged by 7Road  [E &AM Al WA AR EHAE
arising from IP licensing agreements (Note c) WH 2 5T A & RRiEE (Mistc) 15,648 100,000

(@) The cap is for the period from December 15, 2017, the listing date
of the Company, to December 31, 2017, has been apportioned
according to the annual cap as stated in the prospectus of the
Company dated December 5, 2017.

(b) The Group has entered into content distribution agreements with
7Road with respect to three particular game series originally
developed by 7Road, namely the Wartune series, the DDTank series
and the Sword Saga series (the “7Road Games”), under which
7Road granted the Group the right to distribute its web games
in specified language versions or geographical markets. On July

(a) ZLERREA-T—tF+=-A+HHB (KA7A
EWHS) ZEZE—tF+-A=1+—HBHMH
LR - HIREARRAHA=ZS—+F+=
ARREEHMBRERMMNFE FROE -

(by AEBEHFLRNBITIIRNDETHE (K
BRE(ARELRERBNFEERRTY
% Bl AWartune % %) + DDTank % 51| 2 Sword
SagaZR | ([ELXKBEHED) Bt Ft
REE T AEE LS E 3B E WA B 16 e b 15
IS TEME ERRET - R=Z—+Ft

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR
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6, 2017, the Group entered into a content distribution framework
agreement with 7Road (the “Framework Agreement”), pursuant to
which 7Road agreed to grant the right to publish the 7Road Games
or other games developed by 7Road from time to time. 7Road
generally received a commission of approximately 15.0% to 23.0%
of the gross billings derived from web games.

(c) The Group entered into IP licensing agreements with 7Road
on February 1, 2013 (as further amended by a supplemental
agreements dated September 1, 2013, January 21, 2014, June 1,
2014, July 10, 2015, August 3, 2015 and July 5, 2017), pursuant
to which the Group obtained an IP license and developed several
casual shooting games in mobile formats until January 31, 2021.
The Group paid 7Road royalty fees consisting of a fixed advance
payment and a revenue sharing arrangement based on a range
of 3.0% to 15.0% of the gross billings generated from the self-
developed games which adopted its IP.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended December 31, 2017,
the Group has not entered into any connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction which should be disclosed pursuant to the
requirements of Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Related Party Transactions”
stated in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, no contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Group was a
party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted during the year ended December 31, 2017.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2017 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements contained herein.

None of the related party transactions constitutes a connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction subject to independent Shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Board, as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained the public float as required under the Listing
Rules.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) in relation to the director’s and officer’s liability insurance is
currently in force and was in force during the Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance
for enhancing the management of the Company as well as preserving
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole. The Company has adopted
the code provisions set out in the CG Code as its own code to govern its
corporate governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
relevant code provisions contained in the CG Code during the Period.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on page 32 to
42 of this annual report.

DONATIONS

In year 2017, the Company has participated in a donation campaign
named “Free Lunch” and obtained a donation certificate. The donation
campaign was initiated by Deng Fei in partnership with 500 journalists,
dozens of domestic mainstream media and the China Social Welfare
Fund, to raise money for a public fund program which advocates providing
free lunch for needy children every day.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended December 31, 2017, the
Group did not make any charitable donations.

RUDNREFERE
REARATMESHANEN RREESHM - R
REHAN  ADTREHS LD RAUREH AR
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AT RIS AR - ERERELEXERERAT
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BERR ARFERAHBETHNEEERT
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EECHERERTR
EEIRIKFE o
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AUDITOR

The Shares were only listed on the Stock Exchange on December 15,
2017, and there has been no change in auditors since the Listing Date.
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2017 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public
Accountants, who are proposed for reappointment at the forthcoming
AGM.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company is in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
LU Yuanfeng
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, March 28, 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M % B A R

To the Shareholders of Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Digital Hollywood Interactive
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 71 to 168, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2017;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BILRBEADHE (B)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:
. Revenue recognition — estimates of lifespan of in-game virtual items

with reference to expected playing period of paying players (“Player
Relationship Period”) in the Group’s online game service
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BAZBE®RE (&)

Key Audit Matter
BREETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BERNBNAEERREFSEE

Revenue recognition — estimates of lifespan of in-game virtual
items with reference to expected playing period of paying
players (“Player Relationship Period”) in the Group’s online
game service.

WAHER — 2ZEEBNBEREMRET IRBEFERRE ([T
KEFRY]) A EBERBANERS -

Refer to Note 5 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements

2B A SRR M 5N EE19

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group’s
revenue from online games amounted to USD28,265,058,
representing 99% of the Group’s total revenue. It was mainly
derived from the sales of in-game virtual items. The amount of
associated deferred revenue amounted to USD3,378,368 as
at December 31, 2017, representing 25% of the Group’s total
liabilities as at that date.

BHE_ZT—+F+A=+—HILLFE  EEEREBREERN
WA 7#28,265,058% 7T - 15 B E B AU AEI99% - WA EZKE
HEERIERER - R_T—+tF+ZA=+—HAEBKELTK
A& 3,378,368 T * IEANKENZBEMNEEFE25% °

We understood, evaluated and validated the key controls in
relation to the recognition of revenue from in-game virtual
items, including oversight exercised by management in
assessing the Player Relationship Periods and computing
the monthly revenue of game virtual items performed by
management; inspection of evidence of management’s
review; testing of the integrity and system logic of data and
information for supporting the determination of the Player
Relationship Periods, on a sample basis.

HAITHR  FEAAREABERR e EEEREANRAZER
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We discussed with management and evaluated their
judgements and estimations made in determining the Player
Relationship Period for each game. We also assessed the
accuracy of the management’s judgements and estimations by
comparing to historical patterns on a sample basis.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BAZBE®RE (&)

Key Audit Matter
BEETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEPNBNAEERREFSHE

The Group’s in-game virtual items are categorised as both
consumable virtual items and durable items. Revenue
derived from consumable items in its online game service
are recognised once they are consumed. Revenue derived
from durable virtual items in its online game services are
recognised ratably over the lifespan of durable virtual items
with reference to Player Relationship Period (defined in Note
2.21), on a game by game basis. If the Group does not have
the ability to differentiate revenue attributable to durable
items from consumable items for a specific game, the Group
recognises revenue from both durable and consumable items
for that game ratably over the Player Relationship Period.
During the year ended December 31, 2017, all in-game virtual
items were treated as durable items by the Group.
ERENEEEREAREMEREEREALTBEERE
B o R e HBRERRE N ERRE BB A TR EFRERFER
KB BB ERARTS A A EERB RN - AR EERR

& 2ZRAED (F& RM5E2.21) R AEE R :E AR

RS AR BIHER - MRS E BRI E - EREEES B
ATVREMAREEER ERERER  IESERZERNITR
@%%W'ﬁmﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁm%&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%WWAoﬁﬁ

—tF+ZA=+—BILFE - EEBEREAAHE
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The determination of the Player Relationship Period for
relevant game virtual items requires significant judgement
and estimates. It is made taking into account all known and
relevant information available to the Group at the time of
assessment. Thus, specific audit focus was placed in this
area.

AR EEUE R B AEE M RKAEY - AIELEARAE R
k75 E BRI EREPNETIHE SR A SHEEERMEL - B

b - WA EER R EEREES -
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We also recalculated the deferred revenue balance based on
the respective Player Relationship Period of each game on a
sample basis.

BAEAHEST X RESEEESENTRAERBRENAET
RIEYAAS

Based on the above, we found that the significant judgement
and estimates involved in determining the Player Relationship
Periods adopted by management in the revenue recognition
of in-game virtual items of the Group were supported by the
evidence we obtained.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BUBBERS (8)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BUSBERS (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BUBBERS (8)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BUSBERS (&)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Fong Wan Huen.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 28, 2018
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

As at December 31,2017 R =_ZE—+F+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tH —ZT—
Note usbD UsSD
=2 ES e
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment, net M - BRE MR EFRE 6 270,592 401,507
Intangible assets, net B EEFRE 7 461,101 68,748
Investment in an associate REEERBIMNIRE 10 681,625 684,873
Prepayments and other receivables TE A R R At FE R IE 13 191,005 50,000
Deferred income tax assets BEIEFTS R EE 1 239,452 147,891
1,843,775 1,353,019
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables B 5 RIWEIE 12 4,192,093 3,834,112
Prepayments and other receivables TEAT R E Ath FE R TR 13 13,796,638 13,206,541
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EEY 14 43,997,614 8,130,169
61,986,345 25,170,822
Total assets HWEE 63,830,120 26,523,841
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEkEE
Equity attributable to owners EATEBA
of the Company EihER
Share capital A% AR 15 2,000,000 10,000
Shares held for the Share Option Scheme BT B ARG 15 (150,000) -
Reserves (=] 16 35,933,689 (394,315)
Retained earnings IREB &F 12,279,521 11,175,806
Total equity RS 50,063,210 10,791,491
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)
apfEEadx ()

As at December 31, 2017 R —ZE—+F+-A=+—H

2017 2016
—®—t%F —2—x
Note usbD UsSD
=2 ES e
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred revenue PEFEUA 19 - 17,347
Deferred income tax liabilities BELEFTEHRARE 1 43,573 27,362
43,573 44,709
Current liabilities k=R
Trade payables B S EMNFIA 17 4,522,484 6,248,178
Deferred revenue EIEUWA 19 3,436,567 3,731,483
Receipt in advance TEW IR 740,726 650,434
Other payables and accruals Hib R RIERESER 18 4,322,401 3,193,451
Current income tax liabilities PIEAFRISFiEE 701,159 1,864,095
13,723,337 15,687,641
Total liabilities HwWe B 13,766,910 15,732,350
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 63,830,120 26,523,841

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with LA L& BB EAERIEREBEM AT —H5E -
the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 71 to 168 were approved by the Board FETME168EMNY BREACHEZTEN T —/\F

of Directors on March 28, 2018 and were signed on its behalf. A+ N\BMETRARE -
Director Director
EE EZE

@ Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2017



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

aftEElER

For the year ended December 31,2017 HE T —+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE-RF
Note usbD UsSD
B 5 E EYM

Revenue WA 5 28,620,609 28,445,686
Cost of revenue AR 21 (12,694,912) (12,910,243)
Gross profit EX 15,925,697 15,535,443
Selling and marketing expenses HE R EHEMAY 21 (3,424,909) (3,267,798)
Administrative expenses TEER 21 (7,536,629) (3,368,894)
Research and development expenses A 21 (452,743) (1,232,660)
Other (losses)/gains, net Htt (BiE),/ WEF8E 20 (539,913) 976,497
Operating profit R F 3,971,503 8,642,588
Finance income RN 23 97,298 2,501
Finance costs TS RN 23 (39,388) (56,277)
Finance income/(costs), net BRI (AR 88 23 57,910 (53,776)
Share of loss of an associate DRI E R RNEE 10 (47,274) (36,666)
Profit before income tax B BT 88 AR R 3,982,139 8,552,146
Income tax expense FTigRiA & 24 (2,255,465) (1,612,619)
Profit for the year FREF 1,726,674 6,939,527
Other comprehensive income Hitp 2wz
Items that may be reclassified ARERN R EFTHESE

subsequently to profit or loss BaMIEE

— Currency translation differences - EB®mEER 557,128 (577,510)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKNZHEE 2,283,802 6,362,017
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)
At 2EKER (8)

For the year ended December 31,2017 HEZ—-Z—+F+-A=+—HILtFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZTE—RF
Note usbD UsSD
B 5 E EYM
Profit attributable to: AT FE{EER
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ PN 1,726,674 6,939,527
Total comprehensive income attributable to: LA E(G 2 E R AEE :
Owners of the Company PIN/NEIEZ YN 2,283,802 6,362,017
Earnings per share BREF
(expressed in USD cents per share) (AR EWTITR) 25
— Basic — &R 0.13 0.51
— Diluted — g 0.13 0.51
Dividends =N 26 - -

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be LA -4 BF 2 E U as 7% FE BB B RO I 5 — O BAE
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BOERZ R

For the year ended December 31,2017 &2 - —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FAREEAERL
Shares
held for
the Share
Share Option Retained
capital Scheme Reserves earnings Total
B R
fTEEE
(&N 213 & REEA st
Note usD usbD usD usD usD
Bix EYH EYH EYH Y En
Balance at R-EB—tF
January 1, 2017 —B—HH&& 10,000 - (394,315) 11,175,806 10,791,491
Profit for the year FREF - - - 1,726,674 1,726,674
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 HE M
— currency translation differences —EEBREEE 16 - - 557,128 - 557,128
Total comprehensive income FRAZAE K
for the year g - - 557,128 1,726,674 2,283,802
Transaction with owners HEFA (UEBA
in their capacity as owners 50 RS
Shares allotted for the share AR BB 2
incentive scheme [RE T enl 1,111 (1,111) = = =
Capitalisation issue BAR(LEST 15(b) 1,488,889 (148,889) (1,340,000) - -
Shares issued pursuant REBXAFHEE
to the IPO e 15(c) 500,000 - 36,487,917 - 36,987,917
Appropriation to statutory reserves ~ BEZATHE 16(a) - - 622,959 (622,959) -
Balance at R-E—t&
December 31, 2017 +=A=+—H
iofes2 2,000,000 (150,000) 35,933,689 12,279,521 50,063,210

e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

aftEZZER (B

For the year ended December 31, 2017 B2 =%

—tFT A=t HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAREES AENL
Share Retained
capital Reserves earnings Total
N ] RE AT #Et
Note uUsD usbD uUsD uUsD
B 5E ES E E Ep
Balance at R-ZZB—RE
January 1, 2016 —B— AW 10,000 122,401 4,297,073 4,429,474
Profit for the year F R F - — 6,939,527 6,939,527
Other comprehensive income HizmEmilas
— currency translation differences - BBBmEERE 16 - (577,510) - (577,510)
Total comprehensive income FRZHEKE
for the year ekl — (577,510) 6,939,527 6,362,017
Transaction with owners HEBA (LEBA
in their capacity as owners 5% RSB
Appropriation to statutory reserves RS ETFRE 16(a) - 60,794 (60,794) -
Balance at R-IB—RE
December 31, 2016 —R=+—
K 4L &R 10,000 (394,315) 11,175,806 10,791,491

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BRI RER

For the year ended December 31,2017 HE T —+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF =N
Note uUsbD usbD
B 5E ES ET
Cash flows from operating activities RELETHNRER
Cash generated from operations KBTS S 27 1,313,529 4,793,053
Income tax paid EARATIEH (3,570,061) (4,543,141)
Net cash generated from operating activities &% EE TSRS FHA (2,256,532) 249,912
Cash flows from investing activities REREIBNEESRE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYE - BFEREE (94,510) (75,554)
Purchases of intangible assets HERVEAE (573,000) -
Prepayment for the right to equity purchase e S B A TR TR - (50,000)
Payment of investment in associate B A A B E MR - (720,000)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEMARESEE (667,510) (845,554)
Cash flows from financing activities REMETHNRERE
Proceed from IPO and BRARFREER
over-allotment BB R B FTIS FUB 40,320,000 -
Distribution to owners m%EA AEHE DR - (7,853,656)
Proceeds from shareholder’s borrowings IR BRI KRIE - 2,146
Repayments of shareholder’s borrowings PR B FER = (2,146)
Payment for deferred IPO costs IRIE B R AR EE K ARRR (1,541,678) (124,720)
Net cash generated from/(used in) METEAE(FTA)
financing activities REZRE 38,778,322 (7,978,376)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RERBELEEY
and cash equivalents i CGRd) BE 35,854,280 (8,574,018)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUNEHEE R
beginning of year ReFHEEY 8,130,169 16,812,751
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash RekReEEDD
and cash equivalents & 5 e (E8) 13,165 (108,564)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRORER
end of the year REEEY 43,997,614 8,130,169

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in LA & BFER & It 2 7% 8 B B8 B A0 P = — (B BEIRE o
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on November 24, 2014 as
an exempted company with limited liability. The address of the
Company’s registered office is P.O. Box 2075, George Town, Grand
Cayman KY1-1105, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the development, operations and publishing of web-based games
and mobile games business (“Game Business”) in North America,
Europe, The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and other
regions.

On December 15, 2017, the Company completed its initial public
offering on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “IPO”).

The Group’s Game Business is carried out through several operating
companies, namely Proficient City Limited (“PCL”), a limited liability
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), Angame
Inc. (“Angame”), a limited liability company incorporated in the
BVI, Game Hollywood Hong Kong Limited (“Hollywood HK”), a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong, Now To Play
Game Limited (“N2PG”), a limited liability company incorporated
in Hong Kong, Guangzhou Suiyue Niandai Software Technology
Company Limited, (“Guangzhou Suiyue Niandai”’), a limited
company incorporated in the PRC, Guangzhou You Lai Information
Technology Company Limited, (“Guangzhou You Lai”), a limited
company incorporated in the PRC and Guangzhou Zhang Ying Kong
Information Technology Company Limited, (“Zhang Ying Kong”),
a limited company incorporated in the PRC. Mr. Lu Yuanfeng,
Mr. Huang Degiang and Mr. Huang Guozhan (collectively as the
“Founders”) are the founders of the Group.

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars
(“USD”), unless otherwise stated, and have been approved for issue
by the Company’s Board of Directors on March 28, 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BOFMBHERME (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the

years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4 below.

2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following standards and

amendments for the year ended December 31, 2017:

. Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses — Amendments to IAS 12, and

. Disclosure initiative — amendments to IAS 7

The adoption of these amendments did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and
will also not affect the current or future periods.

The amendments to IAS 7 require disclosure of changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, see Note 27.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FE®GBERHME »

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE 9)
2.1.2 New standards, amendments to existing standards 212 WARRPZFER - HIRGAE

and interpretations not yet adopted

Az Bl Rk

The following new standards, amendments and UTRASRERBOHEL - HR

interpretations to existing standards, which are relevant to
the Group, have been issued and are effective for further

BEAZET REELCRMILR
FR WS HRE AR - ARSI &

reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the BRI BRI ©
Group.
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
RTIIREHz#%
BN FEEHREENR
IFRS 2 (Amendment) (Note(a)) Classification and Measurement of January 1, 2018
Share-based Payment Transactions
BIFR B RS 3R SRS 25% (B3ThR) (Pt (a)) B RNZS8 D B RS —Z-\¥—-HA—-H
IFRS 15 (Note(b)) Revenue from Contracts with Customers January 1, 2018
BIFR B S 3RS 22 RIS 1557 (P EE(D)) REBFEHHEA —Z-\¥—-HA—-H
IFRS 15 (Amendment) (Note(b)) Clarifications to IFRS 15 January 1, 2018
BRI RS IR SRS 155 (BaThR) (MEE(b))  EIRRBIBEELERIFE155H0 % —Z-\¥—-A—-H
IFRS 9 (Note(c)) Financial Instruments January 1, 2018
BIFR B S 3RS R RIS 95% (BiTEE(c)) E@IA —Z-\¥—-HA—-H
IFRIC 22 (Note(a)) Foreign Currency Transactions and January 1, 2018
Advance Consideration
BRI BREAEZ B 5225 (i(a)) INER 5 RIERNRE —Z-\¥—-HA—-H
Annual Improvements to Retirement of Short-term Exemptions in IFRS 1 January 1, 2018
IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle (Note(a)) g o] BUBR Bt TS SRS R RIS 1SR M AR HAEA 2 “T-N\F—-A—H
BRI BmEEN —_S-NER Clarifying Measurement of Investments under IAS 28
E-RFEBNFELE (i) BEBR et BRI E28RIA THREE
Amendment to IAS 28 (Note(a)) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures January 1, 2018
Bl &5t ER| 285 1B 5Tk (M FE(a)) REFE DRI REERAINRE —Z-\¥—-A—-H
IFRIC 23 (Note(a)) Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments January 1, 2019
BRI BREAELR BEF23% (i(a)) PRSP IR 6 T 1T —T-hF—-HA—-H
IFRS 16 (Note(d)) Leases January 1, 2019
BIFR B 3RS 2 RIS 1657 (P EE(d)) HE —T-hF—-HA—-H
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (Amendments) (Note(a)) Sale or Contribution of Assets between To be determined
an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
BIPR B 3R SR RIS 1057 R EIR & 52 A REERHABENASGE AR ZHNEELE FRE
$285% (E7ThR) (M5E(a)) ST E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBERHEE @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE ()
2.1.2 New standards, amendments to existing standards 212 MR 2 FER « HIRFAE
and interpretations not yet adopted (Continued) Bl Z BT k2 (&)

(a) The Group has already commenced an assessment (a) AEBEEHBTHZEN

of the impact of these new or revised standards,
and amendments, certain of which are relevant to
the Group’s operations. According to the preliminary
assessment made by the directors, no significant
impact on the financial performance and positions of
the Group is expected when they become effective.

IFRS 15 establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is
that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. IFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including IAS
18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

IFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

(a) Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

(b) Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in

the contract

(c) Step 3: Determine the transaction price

(d) Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

(e) Step 5: Recognise revenue when each
performance obligation is satisfied

AR B FTHE RIA R B BT iR Y
FE OBETPETHAKZED
EBERH - RBEEENS
Al R EREA R ERT
£ BT eHALEDN
MBRERARAEREKRT
@ .

B R B 755 R o5 2 RSB 1557 B
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MU ZEZEm MR EFH
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155 BRI IR B w0 e A FERR 38
5 BEBEBR ARS8
SRUA - B &Rt A RIE 11
SRS N MARRERE -

B R B 755 R 5 HE R B 155 4%
TERMA BN IEAER
WA

(a) ZE: FHIEEFP K
aH

(b) ZFE2: BAISHNE
HWEME

(c) T3 EEXRHE

(d) ZE84: B ZHEHD
EBERNEME

() #HW5: ESBERHOE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBERHEE @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE ()

2.1.2 New standards, amendments to existing standards 212 MR 2 FER ~ HIRFAE
and interpretations not yet adopted (Continued) Al Z 8T k2 (&)

The core principle is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to the customer in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
It moves away from a revenue recognition model
based on an ‘earnings processes’ to an ‘asset-
liability’ approach based on transfer of control. IFRS
15 provides specific guidance on capitalisation of
contract cost and license arrangements. It also
includes a cohesive set of disclosure requirements
about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s
contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, an entity
normally recognises revenue when a performance
obligation is satisfied. Impact on the revenue
recognition may arise when multiple performance
obligations are identified. The new standard is not
expected to apply until the financial year beginning
on January 1, 2018.

Under IFRS 15, an entity normally recognises
revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied.
Impact of IFRS 15 on the revenue recognition may
take into consideration when multiple performance
obligations are identified. Based on the preliminary
assessment, the Group has not identified multiple
performance obligations and expects no material
impact upon adoption of IFRS 15 to the financial
statements other than the presentation of additional
disclosure.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBERHEE @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE @)
2.1.2 New standards, amendments to existing standards 212 WA 2 FTAER - HIRBAE
and interpretations not yet adopted (Continued) Bl Z 18R] k28 ()
(c) IFRS 9, “Financial instruments”, addresses the (c) BIRBIB|MEEBESR [

classification, measurement and recognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities. The
complete version of IFRS 9 was issued in July
2014. It replaces the guidance in IAS 39 that
relates to the classification and measurement of
financial instruments. IFRS 9 retains but simplifies
the mixed measurement model and establishes
three primary measurement categories for financial
assets: amortised cost, fair value through profit
or loss. The basis of classification depends on
the entity’s business model and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
Investments in equity instruments are required to be
measured at fair value through profit or loss with the
irrevocable option at inception to present changes
in fair value in OCI which cannot be recycled. The
new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit
losses (ECL) rather than only incurred credit losses
as is the case under IAS 39. It applies to financial
assets classified at amortised cost, debt instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income, contract assets under IFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers”, lease receivables,
loan commitments and certain financial guarantee
contracts. While the Group has not yet undertaken
a detailed assessment of how its impairment
provisions would be affected by the new model, it
may result in an earlier recognition of credit losses.
For financial liabilities there were no changes to
classification and measurement except for the
recognition of changes in own credit risk in other
comprehensive income, for liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss. IFRS 9 relaxes the
requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing
the bright line hedge effectiveness tests. It requires
an economic relationship between the hedged item
and hedging instrument and for the “hedged ratio” to
be the same as the one management actually use
for risk management purposes. Contemporaneous
documentation is still required but is different to that
currently prepared under IAS 39.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 New standards, amendments to existing standards
and interpretations not yet adopted (Continued)

(d)

During the year ended December 31, 2017, all of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities were
carried at amortised costs or fair value through profit
or loss which would likely continue to be measured
on the same basis under IFRS 9. While the Group
has yet to undertake a detailed assessment of the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
the Group does not expect the new guidance to
have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets.

The Group is a lessee of certain office spaces and
servers which are currently classified as operating
leases. The Group’s current accounting policy for
such leases, as set out in Note 2.23, is to record
the rental expenses in the Group’s consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the current
year with the related operating lease commitments
being separately disclosed in Note 29(b). IFRS
16 provides new provisions for the accounting
treatment of leases which no longer allows lessees
to recognise leases outside of the balance sheet.
Instead, all non-current leases must be recognised in
the form of assets (for the right of use) and financial
liabilities (for the payment obligations) in the Group’s
consolidated balance sheet. Short-term leases
of less than twelve months and leases of low-
value assets are exempt from such reporting
obligation. The new standard will therefore result
in a derecognition of prepaid operating leases,
increase in right-of-use assets and increase in lease
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet. In the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
as a result, the annual rental and amortisation
expenses of prepaid operating lease under
otherwise identical circumstances will decrease,
while amortisation of right-of-use of assets and
interest expense arising from the lease liabilities will
increase. The new standard is not expected to apply
until the financial year beginning on or after January
1, 2019. As at December 31, 2017, the operating
lease commitments of the Group amounted to
USD2,024,084, the impact of adoption of IFRS 16 is
therefore not expected to have a significant effect on
the financial statements of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHBERHEE @

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

22 f{EBAHE
221 BHARR

A subsidiary is an entity (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group’s accounting policies.
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(a) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries (a) RHE L ﬂﬂ?%&ﬁf&% 75 &
without change of control BT 1T
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do B3 JF HXTE/\E’MQ%% N3
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as EC S i E‘J)\EEEU

equity transactions — that is, as transactions with

RERR S — A5 R EN S
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the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as

owners. The difference between fair value of any MRS - FREMREHR
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired FEEMSHERBNFEE
of the carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary BREEHAERE S E D 2 E
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to WERE YR RER M

non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SOt BHRERME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investment in an associate are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investment in an associate include goodwill identified
on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in
an associate, any difference between the cost of the associate
and the group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwiill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHBERHEE @

2.3 BE QT @)
m%nrm%%@m@Aw@ § 5% O

2.3 Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is

recognised in the statement of profit or loss, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with
a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of investments accounted
for using equity method’ in the statement of profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
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transactions between the group and its associate are REEEMEZTRAEENT B RENR
recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the R LI EREIR EERBE A AN

extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the group.
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Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are FABSE N B A AR R B A A W S B
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. BREBRENER
2.4 Segment reporting 24 pHBE

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors that make strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
Consolidated financial statements are presented in
USD, which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to cash
and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income within “finance
income or costs”. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within “other (losses)/gains — net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FE®GBERME »

POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 INEBRE @)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet item
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income item are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect

(c)

E£E QT
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of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in B E#ZBERLT  WAKHA
which case income and expenses are translated at YIRS HBNERRE
the rate on the dates of the transactions); and 54

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SOt BHRERME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the statement of comprehensive income during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements Shorter of estimated useful lives

or remaining lease term
Office equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “Other (losses)/gains — net” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets

(a)

(c)

Licenses

Separately acquired licences are shown at historical cost.
Licences have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
licences over their estimated useful lives of 6 months to 5
years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software stated at historical cost less
amortisation. Acquired computer software licenses are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring to use the specific software, and are amortised
over their estimated useful lives of three years.

Research and development expenditures

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense
as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects
(relating to the design and testing of new or improved
products) are capitalised as intangible assets when
recognition criteria are fulfilled. These criteria includes:
(1) it is technically feasible to complete the game product
so that it will be available for use; (2) management
intends to complete the game product and use or sell
it; (3) there is an ability to use or sell the game product;
(4) it can be demonstrated how the game product will
generate probable future economic benefits; (5) adequate
technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the game product are
available; and (6) the expenditure attributable to the game
product during its development can be reliably measured.
Other development expenditures that do not meet those
criteria are recognised as expenses as incurred. During
the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, there
were no development costs meeting these criteria and
capitalised as intangible assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SOt BHRERME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (Continued)

(c) Research and development expenditures (Continued)
Development costs previously recognised as expenses
are not recognised as assets in subsequent periods.
Capitalised development costs are amortised from the
point at which the assets are ready for use on a straight-
line basis over their useful lives.

Research and development expenses consist primarily
of (i) salary and benefits for the Group’s research
and development personnel, and (ii) the technology
outsourcing payment to third-party companies.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, all research
and development expenditures were recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income as dissatisfaction of
the recognition criteria for capitalisation (2016: same).

2.8 Prepaid royalty fees

The Group licenses online games from game developers and
pays royalty fees to game developers as sharing of proceeds
earned from selling in-game virtual tokens (“Game Tokens”)
and other virtual items (Note 2.21). Royalty fees are either paid
in advance and deferred on the consolidated balance sheet as
prepaid royalties or accrued according to the licensed period.
These royalty fees are expensed to cost of revenues (where
the Group is a principal) or offset against the revenues (where
the Group is an agent).

At each balance sheet date, the Group evaluates the
recoverability of prepaid royalty fees to determine amounts that
it deems unlikely to be realised through revenues generated
from the games. This evaluation considers multiple factors,
including the term of the agreement, forecasted demand, game
life cycle status, game development plans, and current and
anticipated game revenue levels, as well as other qualitative
factors such as the success of similar games. To the extent
that this evaluation indicates that the remaining prepaid
royalty payments are not recoverable, the Group records an
impairment charge to administrative expenses in the period
that impairment is indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHBERHEE @

29 FERMEERE
AAERAERFHNETEESRA
HEANBLEERAFEHRE IF
FRARRE - ATHHEHNEESEEE
EHRBER SR IRE (E ] 2 BRI
EIf - EITRERY - REBEDIRE
ENRAERLDETRESEN SRR
R OeERIEEENRFERHE
ERABREREENREE - BFER
B BEDRABILASNNRERE
WREER CReELEM) 24 - BBl
ENEREE (TREDE) RERE
B 8 AT g R E R E -

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Q10 ERMEE

2.10 Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition. For the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group only had
loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or expected to be
settled more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise “trade
receivables”, “other receivables” and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SOt BHRERME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.10.2Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

212 Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
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2.12Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the

WEHEEKATIRNEE (8)
REZBEIBEEBAR-AEBAL

debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant EFRE RS EE - BAHERF B
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal AKeEMH - BEBEARERFRHM

payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a loan has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SOt BHRERME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.13Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from platforms or payment
channels for proceeds earned from selling Game Tokens and
other virtual items (Please refer to Note 2.21). If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

214 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand and deposits at call with
banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

2.15Share capital and shares held for the Share

Option Scheme

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

The consideration paid by Share Scheme Trust (see Note 15)
for acquiring the Company’s shares, including any directly
attributable incremental cost, is presented as “Shares held for
the Share Option Scheme” and the amount is deducted from
total equity.

When Share Scheme Trust transfers the Company’s shares to
the awardees upon vesting, the related costs of the awarded
shares vested are credited to “Shares held for the Share
Option Scheme”, with a corresponding adjustment made to
“Share premium”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHBERHEE @

2.16 Trade payables 216 EZ BT FIE

Trade payables are obligations to pay for services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.17 Deferred revenue and deferred cost

For game publishing service revenues, deferred revenue
primarily consists of the unamortised revenue from sales of
Game Tokens and virtual items for web-based games and
mobile games, where there is still an implied obligation to be
provided by the Group and will be recognised as revenue when
all of the revenue recognition criteria are met. For licensing
revenues, deferred revenues represent the unamortised
balance of the initial license fee paid by licensees.

Deferred cost primarily consists of the unamortised commission
charges by distribution platforms.

2.18 Receipt in advance

The Group also authorises third parties to operate its online
games and receives royalty fees from third parties as sharing
of proceeds earned from selling Game Tokens and other virtual
items (Note 2.21). Royalty fees from third parties are either
paid in advance and deferred on the consolidated balance
sheet as receipt in advance or accrued subsequently. These
receipt in advance are recognised as revenues when the
condition of revenue sharing is met.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SOt BHRERME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Income tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences
Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and an associate, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.20 Employee benefits

(a)

Defined contribution plans

The Group’s companies incorporated in the PRC
contribute based on certain percentage of the salaries of
the employees to a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan and other defined contribution social security plans
organised by relevant government authorities in the PRC
on a monthly basis. The government authorities undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations payable and
other social security payables to all existing and future
retired employees under these plans and the Group has
no further obligation beyond the contributions made.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.
Assets of the plans are held and managed by government
authorities and are separate from those of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SOt BHRERME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for
the provision of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities and is recorded net of value-added tax. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

(a) Game publishing service revenue

The Group is a publisher of online games developed
by third party game developers or its own. The Group
licenses online games from game developers and earns
game publishing service revenue by making a localised
version of the licensed games and publishing them to
the game players through distribution platforms, include
major social networking websites (such as Facebook),
online application stores (such as Apple Inc.’s App
Store (“Apple App”) and Google Play installed in mobile
telecommunications devices), web-based and mobile
game portals in certain countries and regions (collectively
referred to as “Platforms”), including the Group’s websites.
The games licensed to the Group are operated under a
free-to-play model whereby game players can play the
games free of charge and are charged for the purchase
of Game Tokens or other virtual items via payment
channels, such as the various mobile carriers and third-
party internet payment systems (collectively referred to as
“payment channels”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a) Game publishing service revenue (Continued)

(i)

Principal Agent Consideration

Third party developed games

Proceeds earned from selling Game Tokens and
other virtual items are shared between the Group
and game developers, with the amount paid to game
developers generally calculated based on face value
of Game Tokens or other virtual items determined by
game developers, after deducting certain deductible
fees, multiplied by a predetermined percentage for
each game. The deductible fees are predetermined
and negotiated game by game, including the fees
paid to the payment channels and the Platforms, as
well as the credit allowable for deduction for each
game.

1)  The Group acts as Agent

With respect to the Group’s game licenses
arrangements entered into during the year
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
Group considered that the (i) game developers
are responsible for providing the game product
desired by the game players; (ii) the costs
incurred by the game developers to develop
the games are more than the licensing costs
and game localisations costs incurred by the
Group; (iii) game developers have the right to
determine the pricing of in-game virtual items
and the specification, modification or update of
the game proposed by the Group. The Group’s
responsibilities are publishing, providing
payment solution and market promotion
service, and thus the Group views game
developers to be its customers and considers
itself as the agent of game developers in the
arrangements with game players. Accordingly,
the Group records the game publishing service
revenue from these licensed games, net of
amounts paid to game developers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHBERHEE @

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.21 W ARERR ()
(a) Game publishing service revenue (Continued) (a) TEEEITARIBSUA ()
(i) Principal Agent Consideration (Continued) ()  FEEAE (B

Third party developed games (Continued) BE=FREOER (&)

1)

The Group acts as Agent (Continued)

Games operated directly by the Group

Games operated directly by the Group are
in the form of self-operation on its own
websites and cooperation with Platforms,
which the Group is responsible for determining
Platforms and payment channels, hosting and
maintenance of game servers for game running,
providing customer service as well as marketing
activities. For games self-operated by the
Group, payment channels are responsible for
payment collections related to the games. For
games cooperated with Platforms, Platforms
are responsible for distribution, platform
maintenance, paying player authentication and
payment collections related to the games.

As the Group is responsible for identifying,
contracting with and maintaining the
relationships of Platforms and payment
channels, commission fees paid to Platforms
and payment channels are included in cost
of revenues and presented on a gross basis.
The Group considers it is the primary obligor
to game developers for the reasons identified
above as it has been given latitude by game
developers in selecting Platform and payment
channels for its service to game developers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

Game publishing service revenue (Continued)
Principal Agent Consideration (Continued)
Third party developed games (Continued)

(i)

1)

The Group acts as Agent (Continued)

Games operated directly by the Group
(Continued)

Different from the above analysis, for games
cooperated with Facebook if it had been
specified by game developers and Apple
App, the game developers are fully aware
of Facebook and Apple App’s roles and
responsibilities. The Group considered that
Facebook, Apple App and itself provide services
to the game developers together, as the Group
does not have the latitude in selecting and
negotiation with Facebook and Apple App and
does not have the primary responsibility to
game developers for the service provided by
them, commission charges by Facebook and
Apple App are deducted from revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHBERHEE @

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.21 W ARERR ()
(a) Game publishing service revenue (Continued) (a) TEEEITARIBSUA ()
(i) Principal Agent Consideration (Continued) ()  FEEAE (B

Third party developed games (Continued) BE=FREOER (&)

1)

The Group acts as Agent (Continued)

Games subcontracted to Platforms

Certain games are subcontracted to Platforms
to operate directly. For such subcontracted
games, Platforms are responsible for
determining secondary Platforms and payment
channels, hosting and maintenance of game
servers for game running, providing customer
service as well as marketing activities. The
Group’s responsibilities are delivering games to
Platforms, and thus the Group views the game
developers to be its customers and considers
itself as the agent of game developers in the
arrangements with Platforms, as the Group
does not have the primary responsibility to
game developers for the service provided by
these Platforms. Accordingly, the Group records
revenue on a net basis, amounts paid to game
developers and revenue-sharing amounts paid
to Platforms or third party payment vendors are
deducted from revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a) Game publishing service revenue (Continued)
(i) Principal Agent Consideration (Continued)
Third party developed games (Continued)

2)

The Group acts as Principal

During the year ended December 31, 2017 and
2016, there was a game license arrangement
under which the Group takes primary
responsibilities of further game development
and updates, game operation, including
determining Platforms and payment channels,
providing customer services, hosting game
servers, if needed, and controlling game and
services specifications and pricing during the
license period. Under this type of game license
arrangement, the Group considered itself as
a principal in this arrangement. Accordingly,
the Group records the online game revenue
from this third party licensed game on a gross
basis. Commission fees paid to Platforms and
payment channels and amortisation of license
fees paid to third party game developer are
recorded as cost of revenues.

2 FESHBERHEE @

2.21 W ARERR ()

BRETTIRIBWA (&)
FEREAE (B)
F=THBENER (B)

(a)

(1)

(2)

SEEEEFA
REEZ_T—+tFR=
E—XF+-_A=+—
HIEFE 2518
BEEREE  BILAS
I 7 & 70 ET A AR R HE D
EEE-—SEERE
omEEEE(REE
EFEBRMZRES) -
RETFRE - L& i
BRARE (FEE)
Ko 2 1 32 18 % AR 755 4R A%
MEBHEESET - R
Bt B =g
NEBRA T Bz
MESA - B A%
EPNCE R SR S =
ZE=HBREEENE
BHEEBA - mEE K
NREREINOASE
B RIAE =77 e
EEANEEEE- ¢ 5K
AR 8 AU AR

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHBERHEE @

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.21 W ARERR ()
(a) Game publishing service revenue (Continued) (a) TEEEITARIBSUA ()
(i) Principal Agent Consideration (Continued) ()  FEEAE (B

Third party developed games (Continued) BE=FREOER (&)

2)  The Group acts as Principal (Continued) (2) HEEEZEEA (H)
Self-developed games B e R
The Group sometimes enters into license REBAEREGE LK

arrangements under which the Group takes
primary responsibilities of game development
and game operation,
Platforms and payment channels, providing

including determining

customer services, hosting game servers, if
needed, and controlling game and services
specifications and pricing. Under this type of
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

Game publishing service revenue (Continued)

(if)

Timing of revenue recognition
Third party developed games

1)

The Group acts as Agent

Games operated directly by the Group

The Group recognises the service revenue
when all four of the following criteria are met
(i) the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably, (ii) it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the service will flow
to the Group, (iii) the stage of completion of
the service at the end of the reporting period
can be measured reliably and (iv) the costs
incurred for the service and costs to complete
the service can be measured reliably.

For the purposes of determining when services
have been provided to the respective players,
the Group has determined the following:

- Consumable virtual items represent items
that are extinguished after consumption
in the form of fixed charges levied on
each round of games played. The paying
players will not continue to benefit from
the virtual items thereafter. Revenue is
recognised (as a release from deferred
revenue) when the items are consumed
and the related services are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHBERHEE @

2.21 W ARERR ()

(a) Game publishing service revenue (Continued) (a) TEEEITARIBSUA ()
(i) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued) (i) WA EZIFRE (B)
B=FREMER (&)
(1) TEEEERE (&)
- WAEEHRD S

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Third party developed games (Continued)
1)  The Group acts as Agent (Continued)
- Durable virtual items represent items that

are accessible and beneficial to paying
players over an extended period of time.
Revenue is recognised ratably over the
average life of durable virtual items for
the applicable game, which the Group
makes best estimates to be average
playing period of paying players (“Player
Relationship Period”).

The Group estimates the Player Relationship
Period on a game-by-game basis and re-
assesses such periods semi-annually. If there
is insufficient data to determine the Player
Relationship Period, such as in the case of a
newly launched game, it estimates the Player
Relationship Period based on other similar
types of games developed by the Group or
by third-party developers until the new game
establishes its own patterns and history. The
Group considers the games profile, target
audience, and its appeal to players of different
demographics groups in estimating the Player
Relationship Period.

If the Group does not have the ability to
differentiate revenue attributable to durable
virtual items from consumable virtual items for
a specific game, the Group recognises revenue
from both durable and consumable virtual
items for that game ratably over the Player
Relationship Period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

Game publishing service revenue (Continued)

(if)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)
Third party developed games (Continued)

1)

The Group acts as Agent (Continued)

Games subcontracted to Platforms

Revenue of games subcontracted to Platforms
are recognised ratably over the Player
Relationship Period, for (i) the Group has a
continuous obligation to game developers to
coordinate Platforms for providing service to
game players, and (ii) the Group does not
have the ability to differentiate revenue from
games subcontracted to Platforms attributable
to durable virtual items from consumable virtual
items for a specific game.

The Group acts as Principal

Revenue of third party developed games when
the Group acts as a Principal are recognised
ratably over the Player Relationship Period
or as the durable virtual items are consumed,
which is similar to the policy of third party
developed games operated directly by the
Group when the Group acts as an Agent
mentioned above.

Self-developed games

Revenue of self-developed games are
recognised ratably over the Player Relationship
Period or as the durable virtual items are
consumed, which is similar to the policy of third
party developed games when the Group acts
as a Principal mentioned above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SOt BHRERME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Licensing revenue

The Group also authorises third parties to operate its
online games. The Group receives additional up-front
license fees from certain third-party licensee operators
who are entitled to an exclusive right to operate the
Group’s games in specified geographic areas. Since the
Group is obligated to provide services during the license
period, the initial license fees are recognised as revenue
ratably over the license period.

(c) Server rental revenue
Server rental revenue is derived principally from server
rental arrangements. The Group enters into server rental
arrangements with third parties to allow them to use the
servers rented by the Group over a particular period of
time. The Group recognises revenues ratably over the
term of the lease.

(d) Advertising revenue
The Group provides advertising placement for a specified
period on the interface of online games. The Group
recognises revenue ratably over the period during which
the advertising services are provided.

2.22 Interest income

Interest income mainly represents interest income from bank
deposits and is recognised using effective interest method.

2.23 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BOFMBHERME (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
strategy seeks to minimise the potential adverse effects on the
financial performance of the Group.

Risk management is carried out by the senior management of
the Group and approved by the Board of Directors.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to
Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign exchange risk arises
when future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investment in foreign
operations. The finance department of the Group
is responsible for monitoring and managing the
net position in each foreign currency. The Group
currently does not hedge transactions undertaken in
foreign currencies but manages its exposure through
constant monitoring to limit as much as possible the
amount of its foreign currencies exposures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations particularly in the PRC, whose net assets
are exposed to foreign currency translation risk.
Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the
Group’s foreign operations considered not material
therefore no separated sensitive analysis is included.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, if USD
had weakened/strengthened by 5% against RMB
with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been USD27,655 (2016:
USD44,411) higher/lower, respectively, mainly
as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of RMB-denominated receivables and
payables.

Interest rate risk

Other than interest-bearing bank deposits, the Group
has no other significant interest-bearing assets. The
directors of the Company do not anticipate there
is any significant impact to interest-bearing assets
resulted from the changes in interest rates, because
the interest rates of bank balances are not expected
to change significantly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 UBERERE W

3.1 BIEREBEE &)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its cash
and bank deposits and trade and other receivables.

The carrying amounts of each class of the above financial
assets represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets. To manage this
risk arising from cash and bank deposits, the Group only
transacts with reputable commercial banks which are all
high-credit-quality financial institutions in the PRC and
Hong Kong. There has been no recent history of default in
relation to these financial institutions.

Individual balances of trade receivables exceeding 10%
of the Group’s total trade receivables as at December 31,
2017 accounted for approximately 55% (2016: 39%) of
the Group’s total trade receivables.

Trade receivables and certain other receivables at the
end of each reporting period were due from the Platforms
and payment channels in cooperation with the Group.
If the strategic relationship with the Platforms and
payment channels is terminated or scaled-back; or if the
Platforms and payment channels alter the co-operative
arrangements; or if they experience financial difficulties
in paying the Group, the Group’s game development
receivables might be adversely affected in terms of
recoverability. To manage this risk, the Group maintains
frequent communications with the Platforms and payment
channels to ensure the effective credit control. In view of
the history of cooperation with the Platforms and payment
channels and the sound collection history of receivables
due from them, the directors of the Company believe that
the credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding trade
receivable balances due from the Platforms and payment
channels is low.

For other receivables not due from payment channels,
management makes periodic collective assessments as
well as individual assessment on the recoverability of
other receivables based on historical settlement records
and past experience. The directors of the Company
believe that there is no material credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding balance of other receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SOt BHRERME (F)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HBERER W@

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BEREE @)

(c) Liquidity risk
The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, the Group’s finance department maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining adequate cash and
cash equivalents.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

(c)

RBE T R
AEESERERHNBL RS
SEY - MR AMEB OB R
B - AEE OB RSN
MESRBESZEY  NEHES
BT -

TREREEAZENEH AT
EREARE 0 T A SR BIR AR RE B HA AR Y
NMITESRAE - RAKE
MEBRR/ENAURADRE -

Between Between

Less than 1 year and 2 year and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
DIME 1E226F 2F BS54 Bt
usbD uUsD usbD usb
EYH Ep EpH EYH
At December 31, 2017 R-E—+F
+=ZBA=+-—H
Trade and other payables and & 5 K& H b E < kI
accruals (excluding salary EstER (a1
and staff welfare payables EiEHe EIRT
and taxes payable) M EHFIA) 6,938,350 505,532 325,415 7,769,297
At December 31, 2016 R-ZZB—XREF
+ZB=+-
Trade and other payables and Z 5% E@FEHTAIE;H]
accruals (excluding salary EsrER (TeiE
and staff welfare payables R EHe RETIER
and taxes payable) M EEFIE) 6,943,782 1,074,883 50,128 8,068,793
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 UBERERE W

3.2 Capital management 3.2 EXRER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital (including share capital and capital
reserves) by regularly reviewing the capital structure. As a part
of this review, the directors of the Company consider the cost
of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares
or sell assets to reduce debt. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the Group’s capital risk is low.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The Group’s financial instruments are carried at fair value
as at balance sheet dates, by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as
follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet dates.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximize the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
for evaluating the fair value of a financial instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

. Dealer quotes for similar instruments; and

. Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for financial instruments.

No asset instruments carried in level 1 to level 3 for the year
ended December 31, 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations

of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

41 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

Estimates of the Player Relationship Period in the
Group’s game development

As described in Note 2.21, the Group recognises
revenue from durable virtual items ratably over the
Player Relationship Period. The determination of Player
Relationship Period in each game is based on the
Group’s best estimate that takes into account all known
and relevant information at the time of assessment. Such
estimates are subject to re-evaluation on a semi-annual
basis. Any adjustments arising from changes in the Player
Relationship Period as a result of new information will be
accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting
estimate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

41 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Provision for impairment of trade receivables
Impairment of trade receivables is made based on an
assessment of the recoverability of trade receivables. The
identification of doubtful debts requires management’s
judgement and estimates. Provision is made when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect the debts. Where the actual outcome or
further expectation is different from the original estimate,
such differences will impact the carrying value of the
receivables, and the amount of doubtful debt expenses
or write-back of provision for trade receivable in the
period in which such estimate has been changed. Based
on the Group’s assessment on the collectability of trade
receivables, impairment provision of USD1,698,689 was
made as at December 31, 2017 (2016: USD1,358,953).

Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred tax assets
and liabilities in the period in which such determination is
made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BOFMBHERME (8)

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

5 WARDIPER

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+t—-RLEFE

2017 2016
—ZE—tF ZE—RF
usb USD
EYH e
Online game revenue FEFESEE PN 28,265,058 27,588,973
Licensing revenue FFEFREIA 300,398 566,727
Server rental revenue ARSI HEERA 39,540 238,770
Advertising revenue BEEUA 15,613 51,216
28,620,609 28,445,686

Year ended December 31,

BE+-BA=1t—HLEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
usbD UsD
EYH =

Online game revenue WRPERBA

Web-based games HE R 10,524,455 10,199,039
Mobile games FePEE 17,740,603 17,389,934
28,265,058 27,588,973

For management purpose, the executive directors of the Company
consider that the Group generates revenue primarily from the
provision of game services. The executive directors of the Company
review the operating results of the business as one segment to
make strategic decisions about resources to be allocated. Therefore,
the executive directors of the Company consider that there is only
one segment of the Group.

The Group has a large number of game players, no individual
game players generate revenue which exceeded 10% or more of
the Group’s revenue for the year ended December 31, 2017 (2016:
same).
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

The revenue generated from top five largest revenue collection
platforms, accounted for 62% (2016: 55%) of the Group’s revenue
for the year ended December 31, 2017.

The revenue generated from the games licensed by Shenzhen 7th
Road Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen 7th Road”), the Group’s
largest game licensor, accounted for 21% (2016: 30%) of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended December 31, 2017. Besides
that, no revenue from games licensed by a single company
exceeded 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the year ended
December 31, 2017 (2016: same).

Non-current assets other than financial instruments and deferred
income tax assets, by country:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

WAR D EBER @)

RERRBRAMRF &R EAREEE =
TEF T A=+t RULFENRAMNE2%
ZT—RF 1 55%) °

REAREEZABEREEARYE L RERK
BRAF (DRINFE KRB ) BHRERBERA K
AMEAEEHEEZE-_T—+F+-A=+—H1t
FEMWAR21% (ZZT—7RF :30%) - K
Wz RBE-T—+&+=-A=+—B1t
FE - BEREE - QRRENEENKAR
BAREBERANI0%FA L (ZF—RF : 48
@) e

BEFDEERBEE (BT AMIEERR
BREERI) -

As at December 31,

R+=B=+—8H

2017 2016

—E—tF ZEREF

usbD uUsbD

E3 ET

BVI REELES - 56,255
The PRC H 1,042,748 1,085,885
Hong Kong aBHE 499,532 169
Other locations Hth 3 2h 62,043 62,819
1,604,323 1,205,128
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 Y% BERRE
Office Leasehold

equipment Computers improvements Total

WAERE Bl HEYEEE st

usb usbD usbD usD

EY EY EY T

Year ended December 31, 2017 BE-Z—tF
+-A=+—-HLEE

Opening net book amount FYE®FE 54,345 80,873 266,289 401,507
Additions NE 1,759 57,684 - 59,443
Depreciation charge HEER (26,648) (38,327) (146,953) (211,928)
Currency translation differences EMmE R 2,775 6,114 12,681 21,570
Closing net book amount FREEFE 32,231 106,344 132,017 270,592
At December 31, 2017 R-ZE—tHF
+=p=+-8

Cost (P& 91,335 314,621 452,899 858,855
Accumulated depreciation ZFHTE (59,104) (208,277) (320,882) (588,263)
Net book amount BRENRE 32,231 106,344 132,017 270,592

Year ended December 31, 2016 BEZE-—XF
+-A=1+—-HLEEE

Opening net book amount FHREFE 57,307 81,951 385,734 524,992

Additions NE 9,502 55,832 10,220 75,554

Depreciation charge HEER (8,708) (51,460) (108,753) (168,921)

Currency translation differences EEBRE =g (3,756) (5,450) (20,912) (30,118)

Closing net book amount FERIEEEE 54,345 80,873 266,289 401,507

At December 31, 2016 RIBE—-REF

‘I’ A=+-

Cost AR 83,908 238,802 424,593 747,303

Accumulated depreciation BitinE (29,563) (157,929) (158,304) (345,796)

Net book amount REFE 54,345 80,873 266,289 401,507
Depreciation charges were charged to administrative expenses REBEEZT—tFR-ZT—R"EF+_A=1+—
during the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. Eﬁ:i& Tﬁ%%ﬁﬁ a+)\ THFX o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 7 EREE
Computer
Licenses software Total
AR EEH st
uUsD uUsbD UsD
E3H ESH EH
Year ended December 31, 2017 BE-ZE—tF
+-—A=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount FHEEEFE 56,255 12,493 68,748
Additions NE 523,000 - 523,000
Amortisation B4 (129,819) (2,434)  (132,253)
Currency translation differences BEIRE =5 - 1,606 1,606
Closing net book amount FAREEZEE 449,436 11,665 461,101
At December 31, 2017 R-ZBE—t+tHE+=ZA=+—H
Cost B AR 2,324,875 30,998 2,355,873
Accumulated amortisation RET#EH (1,875,439) (19,333)  (1,894,772)
Net book amount REFE 449,436 11,665 461,101
Year ended December 31, 2016 BE-ZE—XE
+=-A=+—-RHLFE
Opening net book amount FHRRENFE 617,981 17,865 635,846
Additions nNE 50,000 - 50,000
Amortisation oy (611,726) (5,419) (617,145)
Currency translation differences EmE s - 47 47
Closing net book amount FREIEEFE 56,255 12,493 68,748
At December 31, 2016 R-ZE—XRE+=-A=+—H
Cost %N 1,801,874 28,036 1,829,910
Accumulated amortisation G £ (1,745,619) (15,543)  (1,761,162)
Net book amount SREEE 56,255 12,493 68,748
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 7 BREEE®
Amortisation charges were expensed in the following categories in HEBARAHIZERERARUATERX
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income: i

Year ended December 31,

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

2017 2016
—=—+tF ZE—REF
usb USD
EH ET
Cost of revenue BN 129,819 611,726
Administrative expenses TR 2,434 5,419
132,253 617,145
ral =,
8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 8 ®RERE IWNERMTA
CATEGORIES
Loans and
receivables
BRKEWRFRIE
uUsbD
Ep0
Assets per consolidated balance sheet EHEEREBRMTINEE
At December 31, 2017 RZE—tF+=-A=+—H
Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments, &5 N E it fEUEIE (NEIETER R -
deferred cost and deposits) BEKARIES) 16,255,433
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEED 43,997,614
60,253,047
At December 31, 2016 R-ZB-XRE+=A=+—H
Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments, 25 & EEWKFIE (T EFEFERNK -
deferred cost and deposits) BEERARRIZE) 15,843,883
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEY 8,130,169
23,974,052
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 8 RZREMNESIHNEMIA @
CATEGORIES (Continued)

Liabilities at
amortised cost
1R B A B BR
A=K
usbD
EP0
Liabilities per consolidated balance sheet EHEEREBERATNEARE
At December 31, 2017 RZZE—tHF+=-_HA=+—H
Trade and other payables and accruals (excluding B 5 REMENFIENER &R
salary and staff welfare payables and taxes payable) (T 8IEENHENLE TEHMNELFE) 7,769,297
At December 31, 2016 R-EB—XRE+=-BA=+—H
Trade and other payables and accruals (excluding B 5 LE M ER FIBMERTE A
salary and staff welfare payables and taxes payable) (T BIEEMNHEKLE @M NEHFE) 8,068,793
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December 2017

9 RHMBRAANKE

FEER-_Z—+F+-A=+—HOWER

are set out below:

ARHEMT ¢

Issued and  Equity interest
Place and date of paid-in capital/ held as at
incorporation/ registered December 31,  Principal activities
Company Name establishment capital 2017  and place of operation
R=B-tf
B BRTRES +T-A=t+-H
DEER RIBHRAH g%/ EMER FANBRE IEEBREEHY
Directly owned
HEHE
Digital Hollywood International Limited BVI/ UsD100 100%  Investment holding/BVI
(“Hollywood BVI") November 25, 2014
EERAESE/ 10057t 100% RERER/ RBEXEE
“E-NE+-A-TIH
PCL BVI/ USD50,000 100%  Operation of web-based and mobile
January 25, 2011 games/Global markets, mainly in
North American market
RERAEE/ 50,0007t 100% SERMERFHER /2405 FBE
“Z—%-A-thRA ik
Angame BVI/ UsD100 100%  Operation of mobile games/mainly in
July 5, 2005 Vietnam and Malaysia
EERAES/ 10057t 100% EEFEEE/ TEEEBRERAS
ZZTRELARA
Indirectly owned
BEEE
Hollywood HK Hong Kong/ Hong Kong 100%  Operation of online games/mainly in
December 5, 2014 dollar ("HKD”) 1 Hong Kong and Taiwan
B/ 17T 100% SEREEE/ FTEERARAL
ZZ-MET-ARA
N2PG Hong Kong/ HKD10,000 100%  Operation of web-based game overseas/
March 29, 2011 mainly in North American market
it/ 10,0007 100% EEREEH B TBEELETS
“E——%=A=+NH

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place and date of

Issued and
paid-in capital/

Equity interest
held as at

9 MHEBRATINRKRE @

incorporation/ registered December 31,  Principal activities
Company Name establishment capital 2017  and place of operation
RZB-tF
HfAL/ EETRES T-A=1-H
NAER RIBHRAH &4/ ZRER BRNKRE IEXBRELHE
Guangzhou You Lai The PRC/ USD2,000,000 100%  Technical support services/the PRC
May 13, 2015
Bk mE/ 2,000,000%7 100%  RATERS,/*
“Z-RFRAT=A
It REEESREARAT (Beijing You Tang  The PRC/ RMB2,000,000 100%  Investment holding/the PRC
Information Technology Company Limited, July 17, 2015
“Beijing You Tang”)
ITRBEEESMEERAR ([LREE]) HE/ AE2,000,0007T 100% REZR/HE
“E2-RELA+4A
Zhang Ying Kong The PRC/ RMB1,000,000 100%  Development of mobile games/the PRC
March 6, 2013
R ME/ AR 1,000,000 100%  FEFHEL/TE
ZE-=F=RH
Guangzhou Suiyu Niandai The PRC/ RMB500,000 100%  Marketing and technical support service/
June 12, 2010 the PRC
BMRAFR mE/ AR500,0007T 100%  TSEHRRIUERS / HE
—Z-ZFXATZH
JEREEHE SRBR AR (Beijing You Lai The PRC/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding/the PRC
Information Technology Company Limited, November 14, 2014
“Beijing You Lai")
ERBRESHBERAR (TLREHK]) wE/ AE#1,000,0007T 100% REZR/HE
ZE-MET-ATHA
Notes: The Company has set up a structured entity (“Share Scheme Trust”) Mia: ARBDRI—RERIEER ([R753

solely for the purpose of administering and holding the Company’s

shares for the Share Option Scheme (Note 15), the Company has

the power to direct the relevant activities of Share Scheme Trust and

it has the ability to use its power over Share Scheme Trust to affect

its exposure to returns. Therefore, the assets and liabilities of Share

Scheme Trust are included in the Group’s balance sheet and the

shares it held are presented as a deduction in equity as shares held

for the Share Option Scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

10 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

10 REFEQRNIRE
NEERBRANBRRNSENT

As at December 31,

R+=-—A=+—8H

2017 2016

—2—+tF —ERE

usb USD

Ey ET

Associate iRl 681,625 684,873
The losses recognised in the statement RIEEXRAERAEENT ¢

of profit or loss are as follows:
Associate i lN 47,274 36,666

Investment in an associate .
REEZQTNRE

Set out below are the details of the associate of the Group. The

associate as listed below has share capital consisting solely of PAT BB & DRI E M o T A58
registered capital, which are held directly by the Group. ERFNBRAEREEMERA - AREMERA

MARBEERSE

Details of investment in an associate as at December 31, 2017 and

2016: RIZ—tFR-E-—RF+_A=+—BR
—REEE R RINIRE IS
Place of business/country % of ownership ~ Nature of the ~ Measurement
Name of entity of incorporation interest relationship method
EEER EEnE EMALER FREREREE DL (%) BENE FEEE
LESERBAERAF (Shanghai Jiying The PRC 20 (i) and (ii) Equity
Technology Company Limited, “Shanghai Jiying”)
DEERBREERRA ([LERE]) HE 20 (i) B (i) #a
(i)  The Group has designated a member in the Board of Directors . . )
which enables the Group to exercise significant influence (i) Z—"%@E%%%@%ﬁ*%ﬁ?\’ ﬁff"
in Shanghai Jiying through the participation in operational, %Efﬁi@%fﬁi%@ BRERBETE
investing and financing actions. Consequently, Shanghai Jiying ﬁéi?ﬁ}%ﬁﬁiﬁ%%ﬁ = A
has been accounted for as an associate. BEBEIE—REE RARIAR -

Shanghai Jiying is a private company engaged in game

operation and there is no quoted market price available for its tf@%ﬁ%%*%?ﬁﬁ$?&f§i%@ﬁ@ﬂ%@
equity. Al EREIWETISWRE -

(i) There were no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interest in the associate. (i) BESRAKERBE AR E

)k

9

#
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

REE-

10 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) .
10 REFERTNRE 0

Summarised financial information of the
associate

BEQNANPBEBREBE
Set out below is the summarised financial information of the
associate which is accounted for using the equity method.

T EARMPEREBE - ARER

PR IR St hai Jiying

LEEE

As at December As at December

31, 2017 31, 2016

R-ZE—tF RZE—RF

+=A=+-8B +ZA=1+—H

uUsD UsD

EYH EP

Current assets RBEE 1,135,083 1,098,923
Non-current assets EMBEE 68,392 82,886
Current liabilities REAE (252,949) (61,444)
Net assets FEE 950,526 1,120,365

Summarised statement of comprehensive
income PERBERE
Shanghai Jiying
FeER

Year ended Year ended

December 31, December 31,

2017 2016

BE-Z—tHF #HEZZ—FF

+=A=+—-8 +ZA=1+—H

I“EE IFE

uUsbD UsD

EPH e

Revenue WA 264,516 -
Cost of sales SHE A (62,662) -
Administrative expenses TR (438,253) (183,329)
Interest income F B A 248 8
Income tax expense FrisRiFA X (219) =
Loss for the year FREA (236,370) (183,321)
Other comprehensive income Hitp 2wz - -
Total comprehensive loss ZHEEBEEE (236,370) (183,321)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BOFMBHERME (8)

10 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive
income (Continued)

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the
financial statements of the associate (and not the Group’s share
of those amounts) adjusted for differences in accounting policies
between the Group and the associate.

Reconciliation of summarised historical
financial information

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to

10 REEE R TIIRE @)

2HKERBTE 9

A EEHRREE QB BRREINNSHE
(MIEAREE RS - WE A LE R
RAZENGHBREREHFE

B BERBER K

Fr 25| P BRI E BRI E AR ERE

the carrying amount of investment in the associate. BEHEER -
Summarised historical financial information BEMBEERBE
Shanghai Jiying
FEEE

As at As at

December 31, December 31,

2017 2016

R-Z—+t&F RZT—RF

+=A=+—-H +ZA=1+—H

usbD USD

ES ET

Opening net assets January 1 FUNFEE(—A—H) 1,120,365 -

Capital contribution from founders &ll3 A H& - 1,296,000

Loss for the year FRNEE (236,370) (183,321)

Currency translation differences ¥kt E =% 66,531 7,686

Closing net assets BMRFEE 950,526 1,120,365

Interest in associate (20%) B N AR (20%) 190,105 224,073
Goodwill [EES

— Initial amount — VIR e 491,520 460,800

— Impairment — "E = -

Carrying value IREE 681,625 684,873

e

EHRE

PEEERAR ZT—LFER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SOt BHRERME (F)

11 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as

follows:

11 EEFSH

BEFMSHEERBENONIT -

As at December 31,

R+=—HA=+—~H
2017 2016
—ZE—+tHF —E—RF
uUsD UsD
Ep e
Deferred income tax assets: BEFSMEE -
— to be recovered within 12 months — #1218 A Ak E 239,452 147,891
Deferred income tax liabilities: EEFFERAE -
— to be recovered within 12 months — &PM121E A AL E (43,573) (27,362)
Deferred tax asset — net ERETRIEE =55 195,879 120,529

The movement on the deferred income tax assets is as follows:

BEEFMSHEENEEIT -

As at December 31,

R+=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF

uUsbD uUsD

EY Er
Beginning of the year REH 120,529 43,005
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 24) REmFER (MiE24) 69,558 79,961
Currency translation differences BHmEESE 5,792 (2,437)
End of the year RER 195,879 120,529
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

11 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 11 EEFREHR @
Movement in deferred income tax assets without taking into BEAMSHEENEY (Tet RE—RBKIE
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax RN SRIES) T

jurisdiction is as follows:

Deferred
revenue Provisions Total
ERE WA BiE #ast
UsD UsD UsD
EpH EpH EYH
Year ended December 31,2017 #HE-Z—+F+=-HA=+—H
ItHFEE
At beginning of the year REH) 117,940 29,951 147,891
Credited to the income statement st AUE & 14,955 69,783 84,738
Currency translation differences = E¥iHhE =% 2,853 3,970 6,823
At end of the year RER 135,748 103,704 239,452
Year ended December 31,2016 HE—-Z—<F+=-H=+—H
IHFEE
At beginning of the year REY) 55,383 2,815 58,198
Credited to the income statement &t AU &R 64,867 28,446 93,313
Currency translation differences  Eiin&E =48 (2,310) (1,310) (3,620)
At end of the year RER 117,940 29,951 147,891
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SOt BHRERME (F)

11 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Movement in deferred income tax liabilities without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax
jurisdiction is as follows:

11 EZEFRER @)

R AR AR T

Deferred Cost

B A
usbD
EY
Year ended December 31, 2017 BE-2—+tHE+=-A=+—HILLEE
At beginning of the year REA] (27,362)
Charged to the income statement bRl (15,180)
Currency translation differences EBmE =g (1,031)
At end of the year RER (43,573)
Year ended December 31, 2016 BE-_ZE—XRFE+ZA=1+—HLEE
At beginning of the year RER (15,193)
Charged to the income statement N ERE Sl (13,352)
Currency translation differences BB EESE 1,183
At end of the year RHER (27,362)

Deferred income tax liabilities of USD624,623 (2016: USD450,175)
as at December 31, 2017, have not been recognised for the
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries. Such amounts
are permanently reinvested. Unremitted earnings totalled
USD12,492,466 (2016:USD9,003,497) as at December 31, 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

12 TRADE RECEIVABLES

12 B 5 BWRE

As at December 31,

R+=—A=+—8

2017 2016

:g—‘tﬂi :;ﬁf/\\fﬁ

uUsbD uUsD

Ep ET

Trade receivables (Note a) E S s (Hita) 5,890,782 5,193,065
Less: allowance for impairment of trade B BB RUBGRIERE R

receivables (Note c) (FffzEe) (1,698,689) (1,358,953)

4,192,093 3,834,112

Trade receivables are arising from the development and
operation of online game business. The credit terms of trade
receivables granted to the Platforms and third party payment
vendors are usually zero to 120 days and zero to 30 days,
respectively. Ageing analysis based on invoice date of the
gross trade receivables at the respective balance sheet dates
is as follows:

(a) EBZREWFANK QBB EREFNFEE
NEE - BTFERE=ZDNTIRBH
EENEZERFACERBRED IR
TE120H R TE30H - REEBEE
HERESRWFRABERZAHNE
BT

As at December 31,

Rt=A=+—H

2017 2016

—B—+tF —E-RF

uUsD usD

E Ev

0-30 days 0%£30H 1,278,010 1,854,386
30-90 days 30£90H 1,757,240 1,363,835
90-180 days 90£180H 948,332 627,115
Over 180 days ##i%180H 1,907,200 1,347,729
5,890,782 5,193,065
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

12 TRADE RECEIVABLES (cContinued)

(b)

As at December 31, 2017, trade receivables of past due but not
impaired were USD589,504 (2016:USD438,686). These related
to a number of independent platforms and third party payment
vendors which the Group has not encountered any credit
defaults in the past and they are assessed to be financially
trustworthy. As a result, the directors of the Company consider
that these overdue amounts can be recovered. The ageing
analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

12 ES WA @)

(b)

R-E—+F+-_H=+—0 2@af
BRBENE S EWFIE 5589,504%
7T (ZF— N4 438,686k 7T) ° %%
FERETEYFEREZHARERE
HERER AEEBIRABIES
MEREEEY  BRSENETER
FEBEERT A ARFEESR
B ZERHFET KD - ZEE5
EUG BRI BRI DATA0 T ¢

As at December 31,

R+=—A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
usb USD
EYH x5

Outstanding after due dates: BIEAE & R (EE -

30-90 days 30£290H 82,792 36,025
90-180 days 90%180H 506,712 402,661
589,504 438,686

As at December 31, 2017, trade receivables of USD2,236,959
(2016: USD1,641,352) were impaired. Movements on the
Group’s provision for impairment of trade receivables are as
follows:

(c)

R_E—+tHF+_A=+—HB BEHE
W 3K 182,236,959 T (ZF — K F -
1,641,352%70) BB - ~NEEBFE
WRIERERENEBNT

As at December 31,

R+=—B=+—8H

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

usb USD

EPH =

At beginning of the year REW) 1,358,953 681,880
Provision for impairment (B B 339,736 677,073
At end of the year RER 1,698,689 1,358,953

BB YRR B R R BEERE DA
Aot EEWRER (TR RA -

The provision and reversal of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in “administrative expenses” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BOFMBHERME (8)

12 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

(d) The carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

12 ES WA )

(d) AEENEZERFANRTETIAT

FIEHEHE -
As at December 31,
R+=—A=+—8H

2017 2016

—EB—tF —T—RF

usbD usD

EPH ET

usb ETT 4,325,432 3,774,127
RMB AR 1,481,180 1,364,343
HKD BT 84,170 54,595
5,890,782 5,193,065

(e) As at December 31, 2017, the fair value of trade receivables
approximated their carrying amounts (2016: same).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

(e) M-T—tF+-_A=+—H BIHE
WHENATFEREERERS (ZF
—RF A -

REEBRBREBBRAZNRAEERR

AL E B ER SRR REE - A%
%30 45 A A R S E R -

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

13 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES 13 ERRREMEWRRE

As at December 31,

R+=A=+—8
2017 2016
—E—+tF N S
usbD uUsSbD
E3 ET
Included in non-current assets SAERBEE
Prepayment for intangible assets B EEBMNR 50,000 -
Prepayment for leasehold improvements HEYHEEBENK 35,067 -
Prepayment for equity investment (Note a) AR ETBRR (Fista) 50,000 50,000
Deposits e 55,938 -
191,005 50,000
Included in current assets FARBEE
Receivables relating to payment channels BN RRENEYRIE (H5Eb)

(Note b) 11,930,540 9,413,281
Amounts due from related parties FE YL EaR 5 5108 (MI5E28(e))

(Note 28(e)) - 2,506,215
Deferred cost IRIER A 899,724 541,012
Prepayment for listing expenses TR TEAR - 458,062
Prepaid royalty fees BT R E 636,183 42,001
Prepaid advertising charges ENESER 38,649 129,500
Prepaid server rental expenses AR RRBHEERZ 95,168 15,358
Deposits (to be recovered within 12 months) %% (#7218 A RYk@E) 63,574 10,837
Others E b 132,800 90,275

13,796,638 13,206,541
13,987,643 13,256,541

(a) Prepayment for the right to equity purchase of certain shares

of a company engaged in game operation, which are to be

determined at a later stage.

(b) Receivables relating to payment channels mainly represents

the balances in PayPal and Skrill (formerly Moneybookers), for

cash collection from game players for games operated on the

Group’s websites.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
14 BERREEEY

As at December 31,

R+=B=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF TERRE
usbD USD
E3 ET
Cash on hand FHERAD - 69
Cash at bank RITIR S 43,997,614 8,130,100
43,997,614 8,130,169
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following
currencies: ReRReEEW A TIEEE :
As at December 31,
R+=ZA=+—H
2017 2016
—g—t®  —TAF
usbD uUsbD
E3 EYM
uUsD E 2,959,158 3,630,708
RMB AR 595,684 1,090,934
HKD BT 39,226,042 2,237,903
EURO BT 1,216,730 1,170,624
43,997,614 8,130,169
The conversion of USD denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies VASRTTRHER BRI E R IMNE JiiG ik B AN
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are subject FHEMRTTES LR SELTE - AETTE
to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control TR A8 4 B0 AR BA N B R AR Al S AR 1 o

promulgated by the PRC government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SOt BHRERME (F)

15 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES HELD FOR
THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The total authorised share capital of the Company comprises
4,000,000,000 ordinary shares (2016: 50,000,000 ordinary shares)
with par value of USDO0.001 per share (2016: USD0.001 per share).

As at December 31, 2017, the total number of issued ordinary
shares of the Company was 2,000,000,000 shares (2016:
10,000,100 shares) which included 149,999,973 shares (2016: nil)
held under the share incentive scheme. They have been fully paid
up.

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital and
shares held for the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

15 %ﬁ&?ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂgﬁ‘f%%ﬁmﬁﬁ

NN B Y 48OE SE IR AN £2454,000,000,000% &
R (ZF — 7<% : 50,000,000/% & i %) -
&R EER0.001ETL (ZF—RF: i
0.001%7T) °

RZE—+F+-_A=+—H &AQFC%
17 % 38 B% 48 #52,000,000,0000% (—ZF —X
4 :10,000,1000%) © BIEF A0 B E =T 85
B 19149,999, 973l fn (T —7N4F « #) o
ZERDEH BRI -

2o

Shares held
Number of Share for the Share
shares in issue capital Option Scheme
28T HEBRAES A
RHOEE [ BENRS
usbD UsD
E Ep
As at December 31, 2015, RZZE—HER
and 2016 —E-RF+-A=+—H 10,000,100 10,000 -
Shares allotted for the share BLAR 1D BT BB 2 M AR (9
incentive scheme (Note (a)) (FizE(a)) 1,111,122 1,111 (1,111)
Capitalisation issue (Note (b))  A7A(L 34T (HizE(b)) 1,488,888,778 1,488,889 (148,889)
Issue of new shares pursuant BEE X AREERITHRD
to the IPO (Note (c)) (MEE(c)) 500,000,000 500,000 -
At December 31, 2017 RZE—+tF+=-A=+—H 2,000,000,000 2,000,000 (150,000)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

15 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES HELD FOR N N
THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 15 RARBBREEFEHR

% =)
(a) According to the written resolutions of all the members of the
Company dated November 2, 2015, an aggregate of 1,111,122 (@) REABR-_FT—AFT-—A_HXR

ordinary shares were authorised and reserved for the issuance
to the employees, directors of the Group and other persons
pursuant to the share incentive scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) to be adopted by the Company.

The Company has appointed Core Trust Company Limited
as the trustee to assist with the administration and vesting of
options granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. On May
27, 2017, the Company allotted and issued a total of 1,111,122
shares to Epic City Limited (“Share Scheme Trust”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Core Trust Company Limited, which are or
will be used to satisfy the options upon exercise. The shares
held by Share Scheme Trust are presented as a deduction
in equity as shares held for the Share Option Scheme. As
at December 31, 2017, no options have been granted to the
employees of the Group.

Pursuant to the shareholders’ resolutions passed on November
24, 2017, an aggregate of 1,488,888,778 shares of USD0.001
each were allotted issued, credited as fully paid at par, by way
of capitalisation of the sum of USD1,488,889 from the share
premium account, to the then existing shareholders of the
Company on December 15, 2017.

Shares held for the Share Option Scheme were allotted and
issued, debited as fully paid at par in proportion to Share
Scheme Trust’s respective shareholdings as of November 24,
2017, by way of capitalisation of the sum of USD148,889 from
the share premium account on December 15, 2017.

In connection with the IPO of the shares of the Company,
500,000,000 shares of USDO0.001 per share for cash
consideration of HKD0.63 each were issued and a net proceed
of HKD276,688,396 (equivalent to USD36,987,917) was raised
on December 15, 2017.

AAEEBRENZEERER & &
1,111,122% T3/ A% B I 5 S AR B8 DAAR
BARQ RS FIRAB R G 2@ T8 ([88
BB BT T AEENEE - EF
REMAL -

A X A B % {ICore Trust Company
Limited/EAZ T AR E R R EBIR
BRERETERHOERE R —
+FRAZ++ER - AAFMEpic City
Limited ([ #&{p 5t #I{55E] - Core Trust
Company Limited®) 2= & E A 7F]) B2
B NEITA 1,111 122080 - FAEk
ERALMEEREETERNTE - K
MErEME R ARG A B AR 8
BEORGO 2 AERRD  c RZT—
+t&+-A=+—8 " BECHALEER
1B B LA (IR AR -

RENR_Z—tF+—-A-+HAREB
M RORER S - BB B R (B AR P
7£1,488,889X TIEREA  R-T—+
FT-ATHARARREHFHEMNR
RBCE N 3 17A $1,488,888, 778 F M
E{E0.001XTTIREEART B EUR 1A

,T/\ °

RZZE—+F+ A +ABEBREERD
HBRR P F148,889F TIEA A A -
BR_Z—tF+—AZ+MBERME
EESanREL O - flE kBT
T ANRG - WIEEENSE
R IR -

RARARBMNBERAAFAEEMS -
RZZE—tFF+ZA+RAUERSR
{8 5 [%0.63/% JT % 77500,000,000%
PR EE0.COIETLH G, - MEBEME
FEF 58 5276,688,39678 7T (M0 £ R
36,987,917%7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEEEREMTE (8)

16 RESERVES

16 &
Share-based Currency
Share payment Statutory  translation Other
premium reserves reserves  difference reserves Total
DY) 3rip=t-ti:
ROEE WERERE EERE EWBREEH Bt @zt
usD usD usD usD usD usD
EYH EYH EYS EYe EYS EYe
Balance at January 1, 2017 R-ZEB-+t&-A-H
0 455,249 612,443 249,908 (969,583) (742,332) (394,315)
Appropriation to statutory BREEATREE (HiEa)
reserves (Note a) - 622,959 - - - 622,959
Capitalisation issue (Note 15(b)) & ZA{LE1T (M5H15(b)) ~ (1,340,000) - - - - (1,340,000)
Shares issued pursuant to the IPO  REF &R AR E%TT
(Note 15(c)) fzfn (FizE15(c)) 36,487,917 - - - - 36,487,917
Currency translation differences ~ S¥#HE =% - - - 557,128 = 557,128
Balance at December 31,2017 RZ-Z—+#F
TZA=t—H#H&s 35,603,166 1,235,402 249,908 (412,455) (742,332) 35,933,689
Balance at January 1, 2016 R-ZZE-xE-A—H
:0Ee-S 455,249 612,443 189,114 (392,073) (742,332) 122,401
Appropriation to statutory BREETRE
reserves (Note a) GED) - - 60,794 - - 60,794
Currency translation differences ~ & iEE =4 - - - (577,510) - (577,510)
Balance at December 31,2016 R=-ZE—XF
+-A=t-BWEH 455,249 612,443 249,908 (969,583) (742,332) (394,315)
(a) In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC and the Articles of Association of subsidiaries located (a) RIEHRENAEBERER RO T ER

in the PRC, it is required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory net profits after offsetting any prior years’ losses
as determined under the PRC accounting standards, to the
statutory surplus reserve fund before distributing the net
profit. When the balance of the statutory surplus reserve fund
reaches 50% of the share capital, any further appropriation is
at the discretion of shareholders. The statutory surplus reserve
fund can be used to offset prior years’ losses, if any, and
may be converted into share capital by issuing new shares to
shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholding or by
increasing the par value of the shares currently held by them,
provided that the remaining balance of the statutory surplus
reserve fund after such issue is no less than 25% of share
capital.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BOFMBHERME (8)

17 TRADE PAYABLES

17 EZ BHARE

As at December 31,

R+=—A=+-—H

2017 2016

—ZE—tF ZE—RF

usD usD

EYH e

Related parties (Note 28(d)) RaN T (FIE28(d)) 3,394,467 4,711,375
Third parties F=H 1,128,017 1,536,803
4,522,484 6,248,178

Trade payables primarily related to the revenue sharing collected
by payment channels and Platforms which is payable to cooperated
game developers according to respective cooperation agreements.
The credit terms of trade payables granted by the vendors are
usually 30 to 90 days.

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date is as

B PN FIAE 2R FERE R T & FTRERE
WADBLEEW  FHSERREBEAEHAIE
W T EEEEFEE - RIGHERET
ME RN FREES R A30290H °

BHRMNFIENERR ST (RIBZREH) M

follows:
T
As at December 31,
R+=A=+—H

2017 2016

—E-t% “E-AF

usbD usb

E ET

0-90 days 0290H 1,399,572 1,882,301
91-180 days 91%2180H 1,052,690 1,848,766
180-360 days 180£360H 1,239,275 1,392,100
Over 360 days #EiE360H 830,947 1,125,011
4,522,484 6,248,178

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

17 TRADE PAYABLES (Continued)

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade payables are denominated

17 ESEARIE @)

in the following currencies: AEENEFENFTIANKREEATIEE
SHE -
As at December 31,
R+=—A=+—8H
2017 2016
—EB—tF TR RE
usbD usD
EP ET
usb e 4,120,690 4,998,024
RMB AR 401,794 1,250,154
4,522,484 6,248,178
As at December 31, 2017, the fair value of trade payables
approximated their carrying amounts (2016: same). R-ZF-—t&+ZA=+—RH BIEHAX
HOATFERARMERS (Z2—RF: 8

A) e
18 HtENRERETEH

As at December 31,

18 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

R+=A=+—8

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—REF

usbD USD

EPH e

Other taxes payable E ith pE %18 447,037 300,183
Salary and staff welfare payables EiEHe EIRHA 628,551 1,072,653
Listing expenses payable BN EmAY 1,996,539 664,195
Accrued professional service fees AT EEREE 484,321 284,119
Advertising payables ENEEE 228,850 200,209
Amounts due to related parties (Note 28(e))  FEff ARt T 7B (HiE28(e)) 20,206 420,642
Rent payable RS 279,062 84,310
Others EHAh 237,835 167,140
4,322,401 3,193,451
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BOFMBHERME (8)

18 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)

The carrying amount of the Group’s other payables and accruals are
denominated in the following currencies:

18

HMEMSFREREFTER @

A E ) B AL A FOR R B R B M RRREE D
ATHIESEHE

As at December 31,

R+=-—BA=+—H

2017 2016

—E—+F T —RF

usbD usD

ESpH ETT

usD E7T 3,073,460 1,364,702
RMB AREE 1,248,941 1,828,749
4,322,401 3,193,451

As at December 31, 2017, the fair value of other payables
approximated their carrying amounts (2016: same).

19 DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue represented service fees prepaid by the game
players for the Group’s online games in the forms of Game Tokens,
virtual items and advance sublicense fee from Platforms for
subcontracted games, for which the related services had not been
rendered as at December 31, 2017 (2016: same).

19

RZZ—tF+-R=+—8 HMENK
EH AP EEEREERS (Z2—XRF 8
R) -

IEFEW A

FEEW A RIE BB IR S AN S B e A AR 2 8 A
TR - ERY R ANAREE IR
DBREEBERFANEEEE N_F—+F
TZA=+—8  HEREEREE (ZF—
NE R e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

20 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET _
( ) 20 Hft (F58),/ Wi

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+t—-RLEFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—REF
usbD USD
EH ET

Other gains H it Y 8
Foreign exchange gain, net [ 5 U a5 F 58 - 969,563
Others Hib 33,776 7,766
33,776 977,329

Other losses Hib5E
Foreign exchange losses, net FE 5 e 5 58 (572,463) -
Others Hth (1,226) (832)
(573,689) (832)
Other (losses)/gains, net Hith (&518)  WEHFHE (539,913) 976,497
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

21 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of revenue, selling and marketing
expenses, administrative expenses and research and development
expenses are analysed as follows:

21 RUEBEETHEX
SEABA - S8 R - TR R R
BT POBI R AATINT -

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+t—-RLEFE

2017 2016
—=—+tF NS
usbD USD
EYH e
Commission charges by Platforms T & K& E = F5 1 RAR A FE p U AR

and third party payment vendors MAEER 10,853,537 9,576,690
Advertising expenses BEERX 2,014,619 1,908,638
Employee benefits expenses EERAMMAE ([HFE22)

(Note 22) 2,842,819 3,800,245
Servers rental expenses FRBAERS 1,575,362 1,409,908
Royalty fees IR (108,308) 1,230,100
Depreciation and amortisation PrEe Mgy 344,181 786,066
Listing expenses X 4,760,820 625,867
Other professional service fees HEMEXREE 91,129 183,248
Auditors’ remuneration ZER N2
— Audit services - BEHRTE 418,000 -
— Non-audit services - JEEE R 64,191 -
Office rental expenses PAEHERY 434,256 348,254
Impairment charges on trade Z SRR IER R ER X

receivables 339,736 677,073
Office charges BRAEER 95,909 42,654
Outsourcing research and INEIFEER

development expenses 37,947 3,375
Travelling and entertainment EIRRIREEFH

expenses 97,524 14,719
Tax surcharges LopIEs 50,269 25,116
Other expenses HEAx 197,202 147,642

24,109,193 20,779,595

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SOt BHRERME (F)

22 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

22 BRERABX

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+t—-RLEFE

2017 2016
—EB—+tF —T—REF
usbD USD
EY ET
Wages and salaries TERE® 2,705,618 3,201,027
Pension costs — defined BESNA — REHKETE
contribution plans (Note a) (FfzEa) 76,770 283,485
Other social security costs, Htt2RERAK - FEEF R
housing benefits and other HiEERF
employee benefits 60,431 315,733
2,842,819 3,800,245

(a) Pension costs — defined contribution plans

Employees of the Group’s companies in the PRC are required
to participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered and operated by the local municipal government.
The Group contributes funds which are calculated on a fixed
percentage of 14% of the employees’ salary (subject to a
floor and cap) as set by local municipal governments to
each scheme locally to fund the retirement benefits of the
employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

22 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (continued) o
omnte 22 EEEABEX @

(b) Five highest paid individuals N
(b) EEESHMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the

Group for the year ended December 31, 2017 include 3 (2016: BE_Z—tF+-_A=+—BL*F

2) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis E - AEENAEESHFMHALTRIES

shown in Note 32. The emoluments payable to the remaining 2 (ZF—RF 28)EF WENHFMH

(2016: 3) individuals for the year ended December 31, 2017 is 7RI RBRAMIFES2FT RV DT - BE—

as follows: T—+F+ZA=Z+—BLFE  EH
BT2EB (ZE—RF 1 38) ATHF
[ FUNNE

Year ended December 31,

BE+tZA=t—-HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
usbD UsD
ES e
Wages and salaries TERE® 149,661 161,442
Pension costs — defined contribution BEESKRAE — ATEHKEE

plans 10,745 11,944

Other social security costs, housing EMESRERS - FEEF K&
benefits and other employee benefits Hivlg B @A) 14,057 17,303
174,463 190,689

The emoluments fell within the following bands: N
AN T TEE

Number of individuals
A
Year ended December 31,
BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —F—AF
Emolument band ey e
Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z — 1,000,000/ 7T 2 3
During the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, neither
directors nor the five highest paid individuals received any REEZF—LFR-F—RF+=A
emolument from the Group as an inducement to join, upon ST-RLESE BEEFROIARS
joining the Group, leave the Group or as compensation for loss A L RASBUREEA I - ER
of office. MAREBHFERE « TR IMARSEEE
WOER ~ VBB R AN 5 [ /0 35 Rl sk 1 /R B

BHhE -

BREPEEERAR ZT—LFER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

23 FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS) — NET

23 MBWA (A FHE

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+t—-RLEFE

2017 2016
—EB—+tF —T—REF
usbD USD
EY ET

Finance income BB A
Interest income B U A 2,728 2,501
Foreign exchange gains, net P& 5 s 558 94,570 -
97,298 2,501

Finance costs B I A
Foreign exchange losses, net FE 5 E5 i 5 58 (39,388) (56,277)
Finance income/(costs) — net BB (RA) FHE 57,910 (53,776)

24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The income tax expense of the Group for the years ended December

31, 2017 and 2016 is analysed as follows:

24 FRSFHiBEXX

AEERBZE-_T—tFR-ZFT-RFTAH
=+—HIEFENRERBISTEAT
Year ended December 31,

BEt-ZA=t—-HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZTE—RF
usbD UsD
ES W

Current income tax BUERFET1S ¢
— PRC and Hong Kong — R REE 1,895,444 1,580,673
— Overseas withholding income tax — BINBHIFER 429,579 111,907
Deferred tax (Note 11) IRIERLE (MEE11) (69,558) (79,961)
2,255,465 1,612,619
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Cayman Islands income tax

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of Cayman Islands and accordingly, is exempted from
Cayman Islands income tax.

British Virgin Islands income tax

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the BVI, the company
incorporated in BVI are not subject to any income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits for each of the
years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

The PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations
in the PRC has been calculated at the tax rate of 25% on the
estimated assessable profits for the year ended December
31, 2017 and 2016, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

The PRC withholding income tax (“WHT”)

According to the applicable the PRC tax regulations, dividends
distributed by a company established in the PRC to a
foreign investor with respect to profits derived after January
1, 2008 are generally subject to a 10% WHT. If a foreign
investor incorporated in Hong Kong meets the conditions and
requirements under the double taxation treaty arrangement
entered into between the PRC and Hong Kong, the relevant
withholding tax rate will be reduced from 10% to 5%.

During the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
Group does not have any plan to require its PRC subsidiaries
to distribute their retained earnings and intends to retain them
to operate and expand its business in the PRC. Accordingly, no
deferred income tax liability on PRC WHT was accrued as of
the end of each reporting period.

24 FRiIERiMAX

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

e

FRESREMEHR

ARBRBRERSHBERARENFHSH
BEMKINERLERAR - Bt
AATERLBNFASBESAEN -

RERLZBREMEHR

RIBRBELESOREARD - R
B BR A RE SR MRS A R B R BN (E
R FT1S AL

BRNES
BE_TLtFR-F-R"E+ZA=

T—HIEFE  BRHEE16.5%4 (h5
FERRDL FIEHR BB RIS DL -

REEEMREHR ([RERE
Bt )

BEERBRELY  RERIES - A&
EHRERPEOEBTIROAMERHEE
TR E2B5%EHE—T—+FR =T
—RNETZA=+ - BUFENGETE
REEFIGTE o

REIFEAAEH ([ RS 1)

RBEROTERBER - RPBEKZ
W RER2008F — A —H 2 RELMNE
FMRESNBIRE & 2 IRAARE —RRAB A
10%E TR « i 70 & B LM AR SZ A9 5h
BB EEFEPEETE M IAE
ERBUGHRIFETOBRERRE - Bl
EREEHRBEBIE10%RRES%

REE_ZT—+tFR-_FT—"F+=A
=+—AIEFE  AEEWEEATE
REEPBIMB AR RERZERF -
BEEREBZEFRMANRPELE KA
BEZE - Bt HEEWEHKR - H
e B TE R A B EETIRE AT IS B
Bf& -

BHREBREARAR ZT—tFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

()

(9)

The Vietham WHT

The Group has subcontracted games to a platform operating
in Vietnam. According to the applicable the Vietnam tax
regulations, royalty fees generated from Vietnam are subject to
a 10% WHT.

The Brazil WHT

The Group cooperates with a platform in Brazil. According to
the applicable the Brazil tax regulations, income generated
from Brazil is subject to 10% remittance tax and 15% income
tax, which is withheld by the platform.

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differ from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the statutory tax rate
in the PRC of 25% as follows:

24 FAIERIMAX @

()

(9)

L rg FEHIBE

AEBRBEED BT —EELREEED
Fa o RBERBEERBAN - BHE
EENIREBRBN10%TA -

EAENHR

AeEE—EERENTAAE - RS
BREFEBED - (EETEEEHRA
BB 10%FE FBL R 5% 194+ e
Ta®Em-

NN A G BARR B AT s R &9 B 78 B A A
BLUAER E25% G HMNERSHEAER
T

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—-HLEFE

2017 2016

—E—+tE ZE—REF

usbD USD

E3 e

Profit before income tax BRATB B ANER 3,982,139 8,552,146

Tax calculated at a tax rate of 25% BT R 25% T EHTIE 995,535 2,138,037
Effect of different tax rates available to HARKNEE TR E RTINS

different subsidiaries of the Group BEES:2- (175,440) (746,350)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes sk =R BVl b 1,005,791 109,025

Overseas withholding income tax YNBSS 429,579 111,907

Income tax expense Fri8fiE X 2,255,465 1,612,619
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

25 EARNINGS PER SHARE

25 BRER
Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit B
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average REBEE-_T—+F+-_A=+—HLFE -
number of ordinary shares in issue less shares held for the Share BRERBFTIRARRER ARERTIGRAR
Option Scheme during the year ended December 31, 2017. BITHO IR T30 TR BUR L B R 81 A
AR EHE o
Year ended December 31,
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Profit attributable to owners of the RABHRE AEIEER (E7T)
Company (USD) 1,726,674 6,939,527
Weighted average number of ordinary shares %17 H)A14E T 15 X B AX HUR 7t
in issue less shares held for the Share BIRERTEFE MRS (Kitta)
Option Scheme (Note a) 1,371,917,835 1,350,000,027
— Basic earnings per share(in cents/share) — FREABF (L&) 0.13 0.51
— Diluted earnings per share(in cents/ — BREEEF (L8R (Mtb)
share) (Note b) 0.13 0.51
(@) In determining the numbers of ordinary shares in issue for b
— A —F - — f— —
the year ended December 31, 2016, a total of 1,500,000,000 (a) EEEHE-F ;jij—ﬂjLAi
ordinary shares were deemed to be in issue since January 1, IEF K2 B #eT E\ﬁHX%{ E 5ax
2016 (see Note 15). 1,500,000,000f% E @R AE —F —

NE—RA—HRER BT (RME15) -
The earnings per share is based on that 1,371,917,835 and " A o N
1,350,000,027 shares were the weighted average number i “7% Ty 12 EE B %17 & 0 #& F
of ordinary shares in issue excluding the 149,999,973 BB BB /31,371,017,8350 K
(2016:149,999,973) shares held for the Share Option Scheme 1,350,000,027 % ($@?§%ﬁ§;:;ﬁft
for the year ended December 31, 2017, without taking into Fr-A=T-ALFERBREE
account any shares which may be granted and issued by the 55 £9149,999,973F (= % — 7N &

Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. 149’999'973%)3 iR ;é + KET&ZJS
NARIERE R RT B AT R ATV
Al fg 5 °

I @

(b) No options have been granted to the employees of the Group
as at December 31, 2017. No adjustment (2016: same) has
been made to basic earnings per share to derive the diluted
earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2017
as the Company did not have any potential ordinary shares
outstanding as at December 31, 2017.

(b) R—ZZ—+tF+-_A=1+—H HES
M E E B A (BB ARKE - RET
BHE-T—tF+-A=+—HItF
ENSGREEZFR - WESGRER
BRAELAR (ZZ—F : EE) &
BAATR _E—tFH - BEt=H
A fAE (] BEATIEINEY TE T AR o

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

26 DIVIDEND

26 2
The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of
any dividend for the year ended December 31, 2017 (2016: same). ARREFTRARNBE-F—tF+=A
ET—BIEFEZEEARE (ZZ—RF :
) e

27 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS Lo
27 REFMBRE

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—-HLEE

2017 2016
Tt e
usbD uUsD
E ET
Profit before income tax B B 88 A S R 3,982,139 8,552,146
Adjustments for: PRATEEEL A
— Impairment charges on trade receivables — — B 5 EUGRBERRMER S (Fz21)
(Note 21) 339,736 677,073
— Depreciation of property, plant and — W% - BERREBETE (H5E6)
equipment (Note 6) 211,928 168,921
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 7)  — Mz & a4 (FizX7) 132,253 617,145
— Share of losses of investment accounted — IR EAEREARY
for using the equity method (Note 10) HAEE (MEE10) 47,274 36,666
— Foreign exchange losses/(gains), net —EBHEE (W) F5E 501,935 (904,088)
5,215,265 9,147,863
Changes in operating assets and liabilities & EEREEEE
— Trade receivables — B HEWHIE (793,841) 1,015,224
— Prepayments and other receivables — FARERR B E A W IR (1,104,096) (4,302,141)
— Trade payables — BB EMNKIEA (1,689,850) 413,185
— Other payables and accruals — HibEN RIE R BT E R (91,978) (1,788,646)
— Deferred revenue — EREHA (312,263) (74,284)
— Advance from customers —JEREF A 90,292 381,852
Cash generated from operations REFBERESE 1,313,529 4,793,053

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities only included changes arising from
cash flows of shareholder’s borrowings (2016: same).

REE-Z—tF+-_A=+—HBLFE &
EEHELNEERYERERBRETRNE
EREMELNEE (ZFT—RF : 18R)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BOFMBHERME (8)

28 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

28 EXRBEBLERS

(a) Names and relationships with related

parities

(a) A AN AR EREE LK

7N

The following companies and individuals were related parties

of the Group that had transactions and/or balances with the
Group during the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Name of related party

W R A

THRRRMBMARRBE-_Z—LFRK
—E-AF+-AZt+-ALFEERF
SEARG R SN E B
bl

Relationship with the Group

B SR E B R

Mr. Lu Yuanfeng

R R U& 5 &

Mr. Huang Guozhan

=R K4

Mr. Huang Degiang

Etcbis

Mr. Cai Feng

Mr. Luo Weiyuan

ERNREE

Mr. Yu Ching Ming

RAER LA

Guangzhou Lanquan Information Technology
Co,. Ltd. (“Guangzhou Lanquan”)

BNERIESRRBERAR ([FEMER])

Guangzhou Hongquan Information Technology
Co,. Ltd. (“Guangzhou Hongquan”)

BEINALEIE SRR BERAR ([FEMAE )

Guangzhou Lanse Dongli Digital Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Lanse Dongli”)
BMNTEEHHBBREARAR ([BEMNEREH )

Anhui Tips Information Technology Co,. Ltd.

(“Anhui Tips”)
ZHREIHEREARAT ([RBRER]D
Shenzhen 7th Road

RYNELKRE

Shanghai Jiying
LBERE

One of the Founders
BIAZ —

One of the Founders
BIAZ —

One of the Founders
BIAZ —

Shareholders of the Company
A EIRRER

Shareholders of the Company
RAEIRRER

Shareholders of the Company
RRBRR

An entity controlled by Mr. Lu Yuanfeng, one of the Founders

mERIESAE (B AZ —) BFHINEE

An entity controlled by Mr. Lu Yuanfeng, one of the Founders,
before July 15, 2017

RZZB—tFLATHARAERESRE (BIPAZ )
THIEE

An entity was held 17% by Mr. Lu Yuanfeng, one of the
Founders, before July 15, 2017

RZZ—+E+ATHBATARERESSE (BIFAZ—)
FA1T%ERENE L

An entity was held 15.6% by Mr. Lu Yuanfeng, one of the
Founders

mERESAE (BIAZ —) FHA15.6%ERMNELE

Parent company of 7Road International Group Limited,
one of the shareholders which has 15.5% equity after
the IPO of the Company

7 Road International Group Limited (A%58 2 — -
RERARAEEEEEARNRI55%%EH) HEAAE

Associate of the Group

REERHBE QT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SOt BHRERME (F)

28 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 28 EXRBEBMALIRS

(b) Significant transactions with related
parties (b)

The following significant transactions were carried out between
the Group and its related parties during the year ended
December 31, 2017. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the related party transactions were carried out in the
normal course of business and at terms negotiated between
the Group and the respective related parties.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the following
transactions were carried out with related parties:

EHEBITNEARS

AT ERR 50 A S E R R R E
EE—+F+A=t+-HIEFEE
7 ARBEERE BHAZXH RN
SICHE 78 L e bi-gN SE TR R Sl 2k
77 RER Y IGRETT -

REBEEZZT—+tF+ZA=+—HLHF
[ AT 5 Th LR T #1T -
Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—-HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —F—x
usbD uUsD
E ET
License fees and royalty fees charged RAEE T WA T o] B AR IEE
by related parties:
— Shenzhen 7th Road — RYBELKRE (197,381) 1,213,779
— Anhui Tips — TR 14,323 42,969
(183,058) 1,256,748
Royalty fees offset against revenue: W AR RIES -
— Shenzhen 7th Road —RYNFEEKE 3,476,017 5,691,860
— Anhui Tips — RRIRE T = -
— Guangzhou Lanquan — EMER 159 8,666
3,476,176 5,700,526
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

28 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 28 EXBEBARS @
(b) Significant transactions with related N
parties (Continued) (b) BB S NEKRRS (@)
The transactions of royalty fees charged by related parties \
amounted to USD3,476,176 (2016:USD5,700,526) were ﬁ:’é:?—tiJr:ﬂ =t—BL#F
deducted from revenue according to revenue recognition (Note [ - AR T WO B R A % 3,476,176 7T

2.21) for the year ended December 31, 2017. (ZZF—/X% : 5,700,526 7T) BRI
WA FER (BH3E2.21) WU AR -

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RE
usbD USD
E3 ET
Borrowings proceeded from and repaid ~ #tRRIES KB EEREAER -
to shareholder:
— Mr. Lu Yuanfeng — BERIE A - 2,146

The borrowings with shareholder were unsecured, interest-free.

RRBRAEERREE o
(c) Key management personnel

compensations (c) EAREEEAENEH

The compensations paid or payable to key management

personnel (including directors, CEO and other senior HESRGENNENAREREAS
executives) for employee services are shown below: (BREZ  GFEATEREMEERITHR

AB) BEBMIIRAT
Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+t—-HLEFE

2017 2016

—E—tF “E-RE

usbD USD

Ep ET

Wages and salaries TERF® 374,712 195,933

Pension costs — defined contribution plans BESHAR — AEHKEE 30,345 15,577
Other social security costs, housing benefits ~ Efbit @ REK A - (EEEF

and other employee benefits KEME SR 38,781 23,044

443,838 234,554

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

28 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 28 EXBABIRS )
(d) Year-end balances arising from significant N
transaction with related parties (d) BEABESMNEARSEEMN
FREER
As at December 31,
R+=—A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
usD usD
ES x7T
Trade payables to related parties FESTRRHE 77 0 E 2 IR I8
(Note 17): GESNE
— Shenzhen 7th Road —F®ELKRE 3,324,748 4,641,815
— Guangzhou Lanquan — BEINERE 69,719 69,560
3,394,467 4,711,375

The balance represented the payable due to revenue sharing
between the Group and related parties for games licensed by
related parties.

ZIRAERR IR AN SR B BB 77 SRR U7
RENBEETRAD BREENEN

A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

28 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 28 EXBABIRS )
(d) Year-end balances arising from significant N
transaction with related parties (Continued) (d) %iﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂ’ﬂiﬁx%ﬁiﬂ’ﬂ
=] \(%§>

Balances with related parties were unsecured, interest-free and
repayable according to agreed credit term. RS MR AR - RERAR
WEERGRER -

As at December 31,

Rt+t=A=+-8H
2017 2016
Tt —T—A%F
uUsbD usD
EY e
Prepayments to related party: A B 5 TR A ¢
— Shanghai Jiying: — LBEE : 215,040 -

This amount as at December 31, 2017 represented prepaid : ) B

royalty fee to Shanghai Jiying for a virtual reality game. REAR=F-—LFT-A=T—ANS
HmEER—EERERESN LEEE
TEfTEREE -

Balance with related party was unsecured, interest-free and

4y + v N V=gl

repayable according to agreed credit term. Eﬁi%ﬁa*ﬁménﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ SRR RAR

BEEEGRKREER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

28 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

28 ERBEBERS &

(e) Year-end balances arising from operations
and capital contributions/distributions

(e) BEREALE "FIREE

W F Rk
As at December 31,
R+=A=+—8
2017 2016
—E—tF AN S
uUsbD uUsD
EY ET
Amount due from related parties FE U B 75 sk IE (FTEE13) ¢
(Note 13):
Non-trade FES
— Guangzhou Lanse Dongli (Note i) - BINEEE S (M) = 101,725
— Guangzhou Hongquan (Note i) — BINATE (MizEi) = 31,176
— Shanghai Jiying (Note i) — EBEE (M) = -
— Mr. Lu Yuanfeng (Note ii) — REIRIE S A (B 3Eii) = 2,373,314
— Mr. Huang Guozhan — EBHE A = -
— Mr. Huang Degiang EHEMEE - -
— Mr. Cai Feng — B - -
— Mr. Luo Weiyuan — BRREE - -
- 2,506,215
(i) The balances mainly represented expenditures paid on behalf of
related pifed blithe Groth, () HEHHBEBREAEEAERT L

(if)

These balance due from shareholder arose from operational

activities for the year ended December 31, 2016.

The amounts due from the related parties were unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand. All balances have been
fully settled during the year ended December 31, 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

28 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continusd) 28 BERBBAE RS
(e) Year-end balances arising from operations e s L . .
and capital contributions/distributions (e) EEREXME DIKRELE
(Continued) WEREER @)
As at December 31,
R+=—BA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
usb usD
Ep ET
Amount due to related parties (Note 18): JE{BE: 75 708 (F3E18) :
Trade 25
— Guangzhou Lanquan —BMNER - 14,400
Non-trade *EH
— Mr. Yu Ching Ming (Note i& ii) — RIEASAE (Maki Kii) 20,206 31,440
— Guangzhou Hongquan — EMALE - 427
— Shanghai Jiying (Note iii) — BB s’ (M) - 360,000
— Mr. Cai Feng (Note i) — gk A (5E) - 10,785
— Mr. Luo Weiyuan (Note i) — BRREA (FIED) - 3,590
20,206 406,242
20,206 420,642

(i)  The balances as at December 31, 2016 represented the unsettled
() ZERZB-R"ET-_A=+—HNE
HRERENERTHREEERDIK

capital distributed payables to related parties.

(i)  The balance as at December 31, 2017 represented expenditures
() ZER-_ZE—tF+-_A=+—B0&

HEERE T AARE IR -

paid on behalf of the Group by related party.

(iii) This amount as at December 31, 2016 represented the

consideration payable to Shanghai Jiying for equity investment. (i) RER=F-AET-—A=t A0SR

BREMEAEERN LIREMNK

The amounts due to the related parties were unsecured, I -

interest-free and repayable on demand. J%ﬁ Eﬁs’yﬁﬂl’aﬁ““ﬁﬁ R BRAR
ZRIEE -

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

29 COMMITMENTS 29 EiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAREIE
The Group’s capital expenditure contracted for at the end of AREBRFERCTHOHERREENER
the year but not yet incurred is as follows: B ENE
As at December 31,
R+=A=+-—8
2017 2016
—Z—+tF —EREF
usbD USD
EY ET
Not later than 1 year TEMME 665,099 N
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHERIE
The Group leases office buildings under non-cancellable REERBEAFRIENLLHEE R HEE
operating lease agreements. The lease terms are between 4 EMAERE - HEHRIFEIF -
years to 9 years.
The Group’s future aggregate minimum lease payments under REERBTAIREHNELHEERRK
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: REAENFETELT

As at December 31,

R+=—A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RE
uUsbD uUsD
EH ET
Not later than 1 year TEMME 553,446 337,467
Later than 1 year and not BMMEETNER2F
later than 2 years 375,813 323,126
Later than 2 year and not BR2FETENIF
later than 3 years 356,611 293,502
Later than 3 year and not BR3FENENRSF
later than 5 years 738,214 792
2,024,084 954,887
30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30 HAEE
There were no significant contingent liabilities as at December 31, RZE—+FR_ZT—R"F+A=+—8#
2017 and 2016. mEANNEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

31 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

M ARREERERRHEHEED

As at December 31,

R+=-—BA=+—8H
2017 2016
—E—tH T —REF
Note usbD USD
B 5E ES =7
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRARIMEE 455,449 455,449
Prepayments FEf3R 50,000 50,000
505,449 505,449
Current assets REBEE
Amount due from subsidiaries JEUR I B R R FUB 10,644,492 53,844
Prepayments and other receivables &1 5 K H b g W 7k 18 43,987 458,062
Cash and cash equivalents BE&MBEEEEY 37,683,982 62,625
48,372,461 574,531
Total assets HMEE 48,877,910 1,079,980
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity E=
Share capital &< 2,000,000 10,000
Shares held for the Share Option DB EIR ARG
Scheme (150,000) -
Reserves (i) a 36,215,609 1,067,692
Retained earnings/(Accumulated RBEF,(RTEE)
losses) a 2,799,438 (2,904,265)
Total equity p 40,865,047 (1,826,573)
Liabilities afE
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to subsidiaries G IENGIERE] 5,988,049 1,958,283
Other payables and accruals HibERRIERESTER 2,024,814 948,270
Total liabilities weE 8,012,863 2,906,553
Total equity and liabilities BREZREE 48,877,910 1,079,980

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on March 28,2018 and was signed on its behalf.

%

Director

5=

Director

ARRMEERABREAEFEN _T—N\F

ZAZ TN BHAETRAEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

31 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE M AR EEEBREHFESRS
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued) ()
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) =RABNFEEEH

Share-based

Retained Share payment
earnings premium reserves Reserves
Ui RER
REBF BRGRE R ]
uUsD uUsbD usbD uUsbD
EH E0 E0 E0
Balance at January 1, 2017 R-ZT—+4
—A—H#&% (2,904,265) 455,249 612,443 1,067,692
Profit for the year FREF 5,703,703 = - -
Capitalization issue B BT
(Note 15(b)) (HH3E15(b)) - (1,340,000) -~ (1,340,000)
Shares issued pursuantto  RIEE X QAEE
the IPO (Note 15(c)) BT (FMiaE15(c)) - 36,487,917 - 36,487,917
Balance at December 31, RZT—+tF+=A
2017 =t—B#&% 2,799,438 35,603,166 612,443 36,215,609

Share-based

Accumulated Share payment
losses premium reserves Reserves
VARS 17 7 51
REtEiE Metn s 8 RR B fE
usD uUsD usD usD
ET ET T ET
Balance at January 1, 2016 W _-ZT—/X4F
—A—B#&#% (2,181,567) 455,249 612,443 1,067,692
Loss for the year FRERE (722,698) - - -
Balance at December 31, WZZ—=RF+=H
2016 =t+—H&H (2,904,265) 455,249 612,443 1,067,692
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BH M BHERME (B

32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG

KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF

DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’
emoluments

and chief executive’s

The remuneration of every director and chief executive for the
year ended December 31, 2017 is set out below:

%owﬁﬁ
b R M
N N%

i

(a) EERESITHRARNME

BEEERERTBRAERBE T —
tFE+ A=+ —BHIEFENFHE

mF
Other social
security
costs,
housing
benefits Pension
and other cost-defined
employee contribution
Name Salaries (i) benefits plans Total
Hitixt ERE
BAE -~ ERE B2
BRAKRHEM RE-RE
®E (i) EERF ARG S e
uUsD uUsD usD usD
ET EP E E
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Lu Yuanfeng (Note ii) R IR 2 A (B i) 60,169 6,079 4,339 70,587
Mr. Huang Guozhan (Note iii) =B E %A (M &Eiii) 52,449 5,723 4,339 62,511
Mr. Huang Degiang (Note v)  &=f#385c4 (Mistv) 28,241 2,939 2,272 33,452
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Meng Shugi (Note iv) wEF A (MTiv) = = = -
Independent Non-executive BN HITES

Directors
Mr. Darren Raymond Shaw BRFE4E SR A& (B FEvi)

(Note vi) - - = =
Mr. Li Yi Wen (Note vi) TR E (BisEvi) - — = =
Ms. Imma Ling Kit-sum BRIt (M 5Evi)

(Note vi) = = = =

140,859 14,741 10,950 166,550

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SOt BHRERME (F)

32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of every director and chief executive for the
year ended December 31, 2016 is set out below:

22 EEFTARAEZ (BELQAK
5l (56622F) Z£3831% ~ A T
(HWBESENZER) R (F
622GE) REB L HHERIFTR
ERHE) @

(a) EERBEITHABNME
()
BEEERBBTRABNBE-_F—
AE+Z A=+ BILEENF R
mF :

Other social
security
costs,
housing
benefits Pension
and other  cost-defined
employee contribution

Name Salaries (i) benefits plans Total
Hibt g RE
NS~ BEe
BRREAM KA -RE
e Z2() EEEH kG #Et
usD uUsD uUsD uUsD
e ET ET ET
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Lu Yuanfeng (Note ii) BB 50 (B 3 56,110 6,187 3,981 66,278
Mr. Huang Guozhan (Note iii) =B %4 (M &Tiii) 48,984 5,826 3,981 58,791
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Meng Shugi (Note iv) wEF LA (Mtiv) - - - -
105,094 12,013 7,962 125,069
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AOIETEERRMT (8)

32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(a) Directors’

and chief executive’s

emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(M)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid or
receivable in respect of that person’s other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertakings.

Mr. Lu Yuanfeng was appointed as director and re-designated as
executive director as well as chief executives of the Company and
chairman of the Board on November 24, 2014.

Mr. Huang Guozhan was appointed as director and re-designated
as an executive director of the Company on November 2, 2015.

Mr. Meng shugi was appointed as director and re-designated as a
non-executive director of the Company on November 2, 2015.

Mr. Huang Degiang was appointed as director and re-designated
as an executive director of the Company on June 28, 2017.

Mr. Darren Raymond Shaw, Mr. Li Yi Wen and Ms. Imma Ling Kit-
sum were appointed as independent non-executive directors of
the Company on November 24, 2017.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, no directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments (2016: nil).

22 EEFTARAEZ (BEELQAK
5l (56622F) Z£3831% ~ A T
(WBEENZER) R (5
622GE) REB L MHERIFTR
ERHE) @

(a) EEREBITHAEBNME

(&%)

BaE

(0]

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

ENESENHE - RIERZALHER
ERARBREMBRATNEH RN
H bR 2N BB S -

EREEERZER/EEIN _F—N
FH—A-tHABERARBNTE
ENARNTEREEEIR

HEEEAERZEREFYN T -1
FH—AZBRHAERARANTES -

HETALRZEREFYR _FT—H
Ft—AZRRERARRFATE

Ll

HRREERZEREFTIN _T—+
FRAZTN\ARERERRARTE
E-gs

AVEALSEAE  FREERZRLZ L
R-B—+F+—-—A-+HBEEEER
RRABFILIFNITES -

REZ-_FT—tF+_A=+—HIF
B BMEEFHREXREREBEMNHS
(ZZ—RF #]) -

BEHROAPHEEERAT ZT—LFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by the
directors in respect of their services as directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries or other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking during the year ended December 31,
2017 (2016: nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

During the year ended December 31, 2017, no payments or
benefits in respect of termination of directors’ services were
paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are any
payable (2016: nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties
for making available directors’ services subsisted at the end of
or at any time during the year ended December 31, 2017 (2016:
nil).
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22 EEFTARAEZ (BELQAK
5l (56622F) Z£3831% ~ A T
(WBEENZER) R (F
622GE) REB L HHERIFTR
ERHE) @

(b)

(c)

(d)

EEMERARER

RBE_T—tFT_A=1t—HLHF
B WEMRMERARFREMBARE
ERERE A BEEARQ R HEN
BrrlmEBERNEMREmE N
E=HEERRHEREN (ZF—X
FoE) -

EENRIEER

RBE-Z—tF+-A=+—HLF
B BERERL LR AR R EE
A& F S AR EMBIARBA - 75
BEERREENOFBRLEN (ZF—
NE ) e

RERHREERBEOE=F
RENKE

BERERHANBE_T—tF+=
A=+—RLFEHERERRHREM
BRDAFENEEREMAE=T71R
HAE=DERNEMRE (ZF—X
FE) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BOFMBHERME (8)

32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors subsisted at the end of or at any time during the
year ended December 31, 2017 (2016: nil).

(f) Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No other significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
or at any time during the year ended December 31, 2017 (2016:
nil), except for the transactions disclosed in Note 28.

22 EEFTARAEZ (BEELQAK
5l (56622F) Z£3831% ~ A T
(WBEENZER) R (5
622GE) REB L MHERIFTR
ERHE) @

(e) FBLLES  ZFEEE
MEZBREENEEEERD
FRmANER BOUERRK
HXZHER

BMENESE ZEEZTH0EERE
EMHBEEEATEANER  BUE
REREMZGREBEEZ_T—+F+=A
=+ — H L FE 4R A B A b
MNAGTE (ZE—XRF &) -

) EERRG - ZHEREHIW
BEAER

MEARRRBEFRARANEETNE
PEEAER (THwEZNMHEE) BER
SEEBRENEMEARS K
BHRBE_T—t+tF+A=1+—H
IEFE A RIS BB BN RA T
E(ZZ—RF  ®) HW28FHEE
HIZZ BRI -

BEREPHEEERAR =T tiii&



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RERE (8)

33 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 33 Hig=I1A

On February 15, 2018, the Board of Directors of the Company
approved to grant share options from the Share Option Scheme to
eligible directors and employees for their past contribution to the
success of the Group, and to provide incentives to them to further
contribute to the Group.

The options are conditionally vested upon satisfying specified
service vesting condition, which is mutually agreed by the employees
and the Company.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to repurchase or
settle the options in cash.

On February 15, 2018, 49,498,610 share options were granted
under the Share Option Scheme.

The vesting period of the share options granted is three years and
the vesting schedule is 33.33% after twelve months from the grant
date, 33.33% after twenty-four months from the grant date, and
33.34% after thirty-six months from the grant date.

As at the date of this report, the financial impact of the share options
granted is still being assessed by the Company.
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